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AGM will be held through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) 



 

 

Notice is hereby given that the 38th Annual General Meeting of the members of BLUE CIRCLE SERVICES 
LIMITED will be held on Monday, 27th September, 2021 at 02:00 P.M. through Video Conferencing (VC) / 
Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) to transact following business as:  

 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 
1. To consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 

31, 2021 along with the reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
 
2. To Appoint Ms. Sunita Rani Parida as an Independent Director of the Company 

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modifications the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT Ms. Sunita Rani Parida (DIN: 08957699), who was appointed on an Additional 
Director on 20th November 2020 on the Board of Directors of the Company in terms of Section 161(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and whose term of office expires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and 
who meets the criteria of Independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Act and who is eligible for 
appointment and is recommended by the Board of Directors upon the recommendations of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee for the office of Director as an Independent Director, be and is hereby 
appointed, in accordance with Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and any other applicable 
provisions of the Act and the corresponding Rules framed there under, as an Independent Director to hold 
office for a term of 5 (Five) years with effect from the date of this Annual General Meeting.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and 
things as may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.” 
 

3. To Appoint Mr. Prateek Derasari as an Independent Director of the Company 

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modifications the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Prateek Derasari (DIN: 08484566), who was appointed on an Additional Director 
on 9th August 2021 on the Board of Directors of the Company in terms of Section 161(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and whose term of office expires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and who meets 
the criteria of Independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Act and who is eligible for appointment 
and is recommended by the Board of Directors upon the recommendations of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee for the office of Director as an Independent Director, be and is hereby appointed, 
in accordance with Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and any other applicable provisions of the 
Act and the corresponding Rules framed there under, as an Independent Director to hold office for a term of 5 
(Five) years with effect from the date of this Annual General Meeting.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and 
things as may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.” 
 

4. Appointment of Mr. Dhruva Narayan Jha as Managing Director of the Company for the period of 5 
years. 

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modifications the following resolution as an ordinary 
resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197 & 203 read with Schedule V and 
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), The Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifications or re-

Notice 



enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), approval of the members be and is hereby accorded for 
appointment of Mr. Dhruva Narayan Jha (DIN : 01286654) as Chairman & Managing Director of the 
Company, for a period of 3 years commencing from April 1, 2021 up to March 31, 2026 upon the terms and 
conditions as set out in the Explanatory Statement and the Agreement submitted to this meeting, which 
Agreement is hereby specifically sanctioned with liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as 
“the Board” which term shall deemed to include any Committee of Directors for the time being authorized 
by the Board of Directors) to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the said appointment and/or 
Agreement in such manner as may be agreed to between the Board and Mr. Dhruva Narayan Jha and is liable 
to retire by rotation.” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and 
things as may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.” 

 
NOTE: 
 
The Company’s Statutory Auditor, M/s.  Mahato  Prabir  &  Associates,  Chartered  Accountants,  Kolkata  
(FRN  - 325966E) was appointed as Statutory Auditor’s for a period of five consecutive years at the 36th AGM 
of the Company held on 23rd September 2020 on remuneration to be determined by the Board of Directors. 
 
Pursuant to the amendments made to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 by the Companies 
(Amendment) Act, 2017, which came into effect from 7th May 2020, the requirement of seeking ratification of 
the Members for the appointment of the Statutory Auditor has been withdrawn from the Statute. 
In view of the above, ratification of the Members for continuance of their appointment at this AGM is not 
being sought. The Statutory Auditors have given a confirmation to the effect that they are eligible to continue 
with their appointment and have not been disqualified in any manner from continuing as Statutory Auditor. 
The remuneration payable to the Statutory Auditor shall be determined by the Board of Directors based on the 
recommendation of the Audit Committee. 
  

Mumbai, August 11,2021 
 
Registered Office : 
Unit No. 324, 3rd Floor, Bldg. No. 9  
Laxmi Plaza, New Link Road 
Andheri (W), Mumbai – 400 053 
 

By order of the Board 
For BLUE CIRCLE SERVICES LIMITED 

 
        DHRUVA NARAYAN JHA 

(DIN : 01286654) 
Chairman & Managing Director 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Notes: 
 

1. In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be followed and 
pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 issued by 
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and Circular No. 
02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 and all other relevant circulars issued from time to time, physical attendance of 
the Members to the AGM venue is not required and general meeting be held through video conferencing (VC) 
or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through 
VC/OAVM. 
 

2. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the 
facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, the 
Body Corporate are entitled to appoint authorized representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and 
participate thereat and cast their votes through e-voting. 

 
3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of 

the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of 
participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first 
served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more 
shareholding),Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the 
Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, 
Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

 
4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of 

reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

5. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended)and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-
Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the EGM/AGM. For this purpose, the 
Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating 
voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using 
remote e-Voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. 

 
6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April13, 2020, the Notice 

calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.bluecircleservices.in. The Notice 
can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited www.bseindia.com and the 
AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) 
i.e.www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
 

7. AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 
2020,MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 2/2021 dated January 13, 2021. 
 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING 
ARE ASUNDER:- 
 
The remote e-voting period begins on Friday, September 24, 2021 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on Sunday September 26, 
2021 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose 
names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. September 18, 
2021, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the 
paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being September 20,  2021. 
 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 



A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in 
their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL. 

1. If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-

Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 

URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com/either on a Personal Computer or on a 

mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the 

“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under 

“IDeAS” section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your 

User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able 

to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting 

services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on options 

available against company name or e-Voting service provider - NSDLand 

you will be re-directed to NSDL e-Voting website for casting your vote 

during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 

during the meeting. 

2. If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 

available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for 

IDeAS”Portal or click 

athttps://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 

launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 

enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digitdemat account number held 

with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 

screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 

Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on options 

available against company name or e-Voting service provider - NSDL and 

you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDLfor casting your vote 

during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 

during the meeting.  

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through 

their user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-

Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to 

login to Easi / Easiest arehttps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/loginor 

www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi. 

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to see the 

E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider 

i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com/


3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 

available at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 

demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com 

home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on 

registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat Account. After 

successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective 

ESP i.e. NSDLwhere the e-Voting is in progress. 

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in demat 
mode) login through their 
depository participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 
your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  
Once login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting 
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on options available 
against company name or e-Voting service provider-NSDL and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option 
available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. 
NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.inor call at toll free 
no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30 
 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 
contact at 022- 23058738 or 022-23058542-43 
 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
http://www.cdslindia.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com


 

 
B) Login Method for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and 
shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using 
your log-in credentials, click on  e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 
and Client ID is 12****** then your user 
ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio 
Number registered with the company 
For example if folio number is 001*** and 
EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001*** 

 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast 

your vote. 
 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 
password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to 
enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 

password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the 
.pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 
digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The 
.pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those 
shareholders whose email ids are not registered 

 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/


6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password: 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or 

CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 

www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and 
your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-
Voting system of NSDL. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding 

shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and 

casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” 

link placed under “Join General Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for 

which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation 

page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 

General Guidelines for shareholders 
1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 

(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of 

the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to Practising company 

Secretary Sanjay Vyas at sanjayvyas1802@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep 

your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to 

key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or 

“Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting 

user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 

1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30  or send a request to (Name of NSDL Official) at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

 
Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and 
password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in


 
1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the 

share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to (Company email id). 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit 
beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned 
copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to (Company email id). If you are 
an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method 
explained at step 1 (A) i.e.Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities 

in demat mode. 
3.   Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.infor procuring user id and 

password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 
4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile 
number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THEAGM ARE AS UNDER:- 
 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above forremote e-
voting. 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM throughVC/OAVM facility and have not 
casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall 
be eligible tovote through e-Voting system in the EGM/AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend theEGM/AGM. However, they 
will not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on 
the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 
 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH 
VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 
 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting 
system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. 
After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join General meeting” menu 
against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting 
menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company 
will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or 
have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions 
mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 
 

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 
 

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 
during the meeting. 

 
4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 

Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore 
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 
 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance 
mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). 
The same will be replied by the company suitably. 

 
Other Instructions 

1. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in


votes cast during the AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and 

make, not later than 48 hours of conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of 

the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorised by her in 

writing, who shall countersign the same. 

 
2. The result declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s 

website ww.bluecircleservices.in and on the NSDL website www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately. 

The Company shall simultaneously forward the results to BSE Limited (BSE) where the shares 

of the Company are listed. 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 10 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013  

ITEM No. 2: 

 

In line with the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors 

in their meeting held on 20/11/2020, has appointed Ms. Sunita Rani Parida(DIN: 08957699) as an 

Additional Director designated as Independent Director of the Company and whose term was up to Annual 

General Meeting. The disclosure in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 36 (3) of the Listing 

Regulations read with Section 102 of the  Companies  Act,  2013,  Secretarial  Standard-2  and  other  

applicable  provisions,  if  any,  in  respect  of  the appointment of Ms. Sunita Rani Parida as an Independent 

Director is given below: 

Ms. Sunita Rani Parida fulfills the eligibility criteria set out under Part I of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 

2013 and other applicable provisions. The remuneration paid / payable to Ms. Sunita Rani Parida is in line 

with the provisions of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, as may be amended from time to time. Brief 

resume of above Director, as stipulated under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, are provided in the 

Annexure to this Notice, which is forming part of the Annual Report. 

Above named Director has not completed the age of 75 years and hence compliance with Regulation 17(1A) 

of SEBI (LODR) (Amendment) Regulations, 2020 does not apply to this appointment. 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives other than the 

concerned Independent Director is in anyway deemed to be concerned or interested, financially or 

otherwise, in the Resolutions as set out in Item No. 2 of the Notice. 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolutions as set out in Item No. 2 of the Notice for approval of the 
Members. 

ITEM No. 3: 

 

In line with the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors 

in their meeting held on August 9,2021, has appointed Mr. Prateek Derasari (DIN: 08484566) as an 

Additional Director designated as Independent Director of the Company and whose term was up to Annual 

General Meeting. The disclosure in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 36 (3) of the Listing 

Regulations read with Section 102 of the  Companies  Act,  2013,  Secretarial  Standard-2  and  other  

applicable  provisions,  if  any,  in  respect  of  the appointment of Mr. Prateek Derasari (DIN: 08484566) as 

an Independent Director is given below: 

Mr. Prateek Derasari fulfills the eligibility criteria set out under Part I of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 

2013 and other applicable provisions. The remuneration paid / payable to Mr. Prateek Derasari (DIN: 

08484566) is in line with the provisions of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, as may be amended from 

time to time. Brief resume of above Director, as stipulated under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, are 

provided in the Annexure to this Notice, which is forming part of the Annual Report. 

Above named Director has not completed the age of 75 years and hence compliance with Regulation 17(1A) 

of SEBI (LODR) (Amendment) Regulations, 2020 does not apply to this appointment. 
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None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives other than the 

concerned Independent Director is in anyway deemed to be concerned or interested, financially or 

otherwise, in the Resolutions as set out in Item No. 3 of the Notice. 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolutions as set out in Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval of the 
Members. 

 

ITEM NO. 4 

Appointment of Mr. Dhruva Narayan Jha as Managing Director of the Company for the period of 5 
years. 

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modifications the following resolution as an ordinary 
resolution : 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197 & 203 read with Schedule V and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), The Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment(s) 
thereof for the time being in force), approval of the members be and is hereby accorded for appointment of 
Mr. Dhruva Narayan Jha (DIN : 01286654) as Chairman & Managing Director of the Company, for a period 
of 3 years commencing from April 1, 2019 up to March 31, 2021 upon the terms and conditions as set out in 
the Explanatory Statement and the Agreement submitted to this meeting, which Agreement is hereby 
specifically sanctioned with liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which 
term shall deemed to include any Committee of Directors for the time being authorized by the Board of 
Directors) to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the said appointment and/or Agreement in such 
manner as may be agreed to between the Board and Mr. Dhruva Narayan Jha and is liable to retire by 
rotation.” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and 
things as may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.” 

 

The Board recommends the resolutions set forth in the Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval of the 
members. 

 

  ANNEXURE 
 

Pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
Secretarial Standard 2 issued by ICSI, information about the Directors proposed to be appointed/re-appointed is 
furnished below: 

 

Name of Director Ms. Sunita Rani Parida Mr. Dhruva Narayan Jha Mr Prateek Derasari 

Directors’ Identification No. 
(DIN) 

08957699 01286654 08484566 

Date of Birth 15th July 1981 10th October 1959 20th May 1995 

Date of Appointment on 
Board 

9th December 2020 08th April  2019 August 9,2021 

Qualification Graduate (B.Com) B. Com B.com 

Experience 15 Years in Accounting matters Having  35 years’ experience in 
the field of Finance, Taxation, 
Capital & Money Market 

5 Years in Accounting 
matters 

Terms & Conditions of 
Appointment / Re-
appointment 

5 Years  5 Years  5 Years  

Remuneration details  5,000/- per meeting plus out 
of pocket expenses. 

NIL  5,000/- per meeting plus 
out of pocket expenses. 

Shareholding in Company Nil Nil NIL 

Relationship with the 
Company & Other Directors 

Not Any Not Any Not Any 



List of Directorships held in 

other Companies (excluding 

foreign, private and 

Section 8 Companies) 

 PS IT Infrastructure & 
Services Limited 

 JMD Ventures Limited 

 Unisys Softwares And 
Holding Industries Limited 

 Warner Multimedia 
Limited 

 Warner Multimedia Limited 

 Blue Circle Services Limited 

 Purbanchal Steel Ltd. 

 JMD Ventures Ltd 

 JMD Sounds Ltd 

 Universal Multimedia Ltd 

 Manmal Marketing Limited 

 Prince Tradecom Limited 

 Virdhi Buildwell Limited 

 Arstu Tradelinks Limited 

 Pushtikar Builders & 
Promoters Limited 

 Dinman Marketing Limited 

Natraj Vinimay Ltd 

No. of Board Meeting 
attended during the year 

1(One) 7(Seven) NA 

Memberships / 

Chairmanships of 

Audit and Stakeholders’ 

relationship Committees 

across Public 

Companies as on date 

Committee 

Chairmanship –1 

Committee 

Membership – 1 

Committee Chairmanship  - 4 
Committee Membership - 4 

Committee Chairmanship  - 
NIL 
Committee Membership - 
NIL 

 
 

Mumbai, August 11,2021 
 
 
 
Registered Office : 
Unit No. 324, 3rd Floor, Bldg. No. 9  
Laxmi Plaza, New Link Road 
Andheri (W), Mumbai – 400 053 
 

By order of the Board 
For BLUE CIRCLE SERVICES LIMITED 

 
 
 

        DHRUVA NARAYAN JHA 
(DIN : 01286654) 

Chairman & Managing Director 

 
 

 



 
 

CIN : L74140MH1983PLC029378 
Regd. Office : Unit No. 324, 3rd Floor, Building No. 9, Laxmi Plaza, New Link Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai-400 053 

Tel : +91 22 69969555, Email : blue.circl@gmail.com; Website : www.bluecircleservices.in 

 
Dear Member, 
Sub: Updation of KYC Details in the Master Data 
 
In order to ensure that all communications and monetary benefits are received promptly by all Shareholders holding 
shares in physical form, the Company, through periodic communiqués, advises such shareholders to notify to the 
Company, any change in their address/ bank details /email Id etc. under the signatures of sole/ first named joint holder 
along with relevant supporting documents. 
 
SEBI vide its Circular dated 20th April, 2020 had also greatly emphasized on collection of the Bank Account details and 
the PAN details of the shareholders in order to enable Companies/ RTA to raise standards and provide improved 
services to the Shareholders. 
 
In this background, we are attaching herewith a KYC Form for all the shareholders holding shares in physical form to 
get all their details updated in the Master Data. Kindly note that this Form is only for the purpose of master data 
updation of Shareholders holding Shares in Physical form. 
 
In case of Dematerialised Shareholding, the Company takes note of the details furnished only by the Depositories, 
whenever such information is available. You are therefore requested to provide such information only to your 
Depository Participant (DP), in case the shares are held in demat form. 
 
We recommend and request you to your details updated in the master data and submit the attached KYC Form to the 
Company at its Registered Office at Unit No. 323 & 324, 3rd Floor, Bldg. No. 9, Laxmi Plaza, New Link Road, Andheri 
(W), Mumbai – 400 053. 
 
Assuring you of our best services; 
 
Thanking you 
Yours Faithfully, 
For BLUE CIRCLE SERVICES LIMITED 
S/d- 
Dhruva Narayan Jha 
Managing Director  
Encl.: KYC Form 

FOR INFORMATION OF THE SHAREHOLDERS 

Process for registration of email id for obtaining Annual Report and user ID/password for e-voting 
and updation of account mandate for receipt of dividend: 

Physical Holding Send a request to the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company, Purva Sharegistry (India) 

Private Limited at s upport@purvashare.com providing Folio No., Name of a shareholder, scanned 

copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), 

AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) for registering email address. 

Following additional details need to be provided in case of updating Bank Account 
Details: 

 Name and Branch address of the Bank 

 Bank Account Number and Type 

 9 digit MICR Code Number; and 

 11 digit IFSC Code 

 A scanned copy of the cancelled cheque bearing the name of the first shareholder. 
Demat Holding Please contact your Depository Participant (DP) and register your email address and bank account 

details in your Demat account, as per the process advised by your DP. 
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To, 

The Secretarial Department 
Blue Circle Services Limited 

KYC FORM 
(Only for physical shareholding) 

 

Date  /  _/   

Folio No.       

Unit No. 323 & 324, 3rd Floor, Bldg. No. 9 Laxmi 

Plaza, New Link Road 

Andheri (W), Mumbai – 400 053 

 
No. of Shares    

 

Dear Sir/ Madam, 

 
We wish to update the KYC and in this matter are forwarding herewith the required supporting documents by ticking in 

the appropriate checkbox below: 

A. For registering PAN of the registered and/ or joint shareholders (as applicable) 

Registered shareholder Joint holder 1 Joint holder 2 Joint holder 3 

Please attach self- attested legible copy of PAN card (exempted for Sikkim Shareholders). 

B. For registering Bank details of the registered shareholder 

1. In cases wherein the original cancelled cheque leaf has the shareholder’s name printed 

Aadhar/ Passport/ utility bill Original cancelled cheque leaf 

2. In cases wherein the original cancelled cheque leaf has the shareholder’s name printed on it 

Aadhar/ Passport/ Utility bill Original cancelled cheque Bank Passbook/ Bank Stmt 

Please note that Bank passbook/ Bank Statement should be duly attested by the officer of the same bank with 

his signature, name, employee code, designation, bank seal & address stamp, phone no. and date of 

attestation. 

C. For updating the Specimen Signature of the registered and/ or joint shareholders 

1. In cases wherein the original cancelled cheque leaf has the shareholder’s name printed 

Affidavit Banker verification Original cancelled cheque leaf 

2. In cases wherein cancelled cheque leaf does NOT contain the shareholder’s name printed on it 

Affidavit Bank verification Original cancelled cheque Bank Passbook/ Stmt. 

Please note that Bank passbook/ Bank Statement should be duly attested by the officer of the same bank with 

his signature, name, employee code, designation, bank seal & address stamp, phone no. and date of 

attestation. 

D. For Updating the email id for the purpose of receiving all communications in electronic mode 
 
 

E. For updating the Mobile No 
 

        

 
I /We hereby state that the above mentioned details are true and correct and we consent towards updating 

the particulars based on the self-attested copies of the documents enclosed with this letter by affixing my/our 

signature(s) to it 

 

 
Sign:  Sign:   Sign:   Sign:   

Registered holder        Joint holder 1 Joint holder 2 Joint holder 3 
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To  
The Members, 
 
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 38th Annual Report of your Company together with the Audited 
Statements of Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2021. 

(Rs in Lakh) 

Financial Results Year Ended 
         31.03.2021 

Year Ended 
31.03.2020 

Income  - - 

Profit/(Loss) before Tax & Extra-Ordinary Items (20.16) (110.00) 

Less : Provision for Taxation including Deferred Tax (0.22) (1.16) 

Profit/(Loss) after Tax (19.93) (108.84) 

Less : Extra-Ordinary Items - - 

Net Profit/(Loss) after Extra-Ordinary Items  (19.93) (108.84) 

Add : Profit/(Loss) brought forward from previous year - - 

Balance of Profit/(Loss) carried forward to next year - - 

 
COVID-19 
 
The COVID-19 pandemic has disrupted demand and supply chains across industries, negatively impacting the 
business of companies and driving the global economy towards a recession.  Governments in several countries 
have imposed stringent lockdown in a bid to contain the spread of the disease. This in turn has forced 
companies to reconfigure how their employees work and how their core business processes are supported and 
delivered. These events could cause companies to pause and reprioritize their spending on technology and 
business process outsourcing. However, it is becoming evident that companies that have previously digitized 
their operations have been more resilient. Consequently, in the medium to long term, it is very likely that 
businesses will continue to spend on technology related initiatives with a greater focus on automation, remote 
working, cloud-based applications, optimization of legacy technology costs, etc. Several sectors are also seeking 
technology-based solutions immediately to tackle the health and economic crises – notably in healthcare, life 
sciences, banking, telecommunications and essential retail. 
Given the continued market volatility and uncertain economic outlook, fresh lending was opportunity driven and 
was directed towards good corporates/high quality promoters/relationship or strategic clients to meet their 
short-term liquidity requirements, more like bridge funding, on fairly attractive terms. 
 
PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS & OUTLOOK 

The Company was into the trading and investments in Shares & Securities during the year under review.  
 
Gross revenue from operations stood at 653.93 lakh in comparison to last years’ revenue of Nil lakh. In term of 
Net Profit/ (Loss), the Company has incurred a loss of (19.93)` lakh in comparison to last years’ net loss of 
108.84`lakh (after tax including deferred tax). 
 
The scenario does not look good for the Company as the Investment of Company is in mid-cap and small-cap 
segment, the segment which is neither performed well in year 2020 nor is performing well in year 2021. The 
policy by the regulators added fuel to the segment wherein SEBI asked mutual funds to make balancing in their 
portfolio by adding large-cap and reducing weightage in mid-cap and small-cap. This lead to sell-off by Mutual 
Funds and lack of buying in the segment lead to fall in the price shares of these categories. The Company is 
trying hard to balance its portfolio in order to have further losses in future. 
 

Directors’ Report 
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DIVIDEND AND RESERVES 

Due to losses earned during the year and for the reason of carried forward losses, your Directors do not 
recommend any Dividend for the year under review. 
 
During the year under review, Nil amount has been transferred to General Reserves. 
  
SHARE CAPITAL 

The paid up Equity Share Capital as on March 31, 2021 was ` 20.3470 Crore. During the year under review, the 

Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights nor granted stock options nor sweat equity. As on 
March 31, 2021, none of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Person of the Company hold instruments 
convertible in to Equity Shares of the Company. 

 

BUSINESS SEGMENT 

The Company is into the sole business of Finance and Investments. The Company is carrying trading and 
investments activities in shares and securities in accordance with the Accounting Standard 17 notified by 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2006. 
 
FINANCE AND ACCOUNTS 

As mandated by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the financial statements for the year ended on March 31, 2021 
has been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) notified under Section 133 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The estimates and judgements 
relating to the Financial Statements are made on a prudent basis, so as to reflect in a true and fair manner, the 
form and substance of transactions and reasonably present the Company’s state of affairs, profits and cash flows 
for the year ended March 31, 2021. 

The Company continues to focus on judicious management of its working capital, receivables, inventories and 
other working capital parameters were kept under strict check through continuous monitoring. 

There is no audit qualification in the standalone financial statements by the statutory auditors for the year under 
review. 

 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments, if any, covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements. 
 
SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

The Company does not have any material subsidiary as defined under the Listing Regulations. However, it has 
formulated a policy for determining its ‘Material’ Subsidiaries and the same is available on the website of the 
Company viz. www.bluecircleservices.in  
 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

All transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 23 
of Listing Regulations; during the financial year were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length 
pricing basis and do not attract the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made 
thereunder are not attracted and thus disclosure in term of Section 134(3)(h) r/w Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and under Regulation 34(3) & 53(f), Para A of Schedule V of SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 
2015 is attached as Annexure I. Further, there are no materially significant transactions with related parties 
during the financial year which were in conflict with the interest of the Company. Suitable disclosure as required 
by the Accounting Standards (AS18) has been made in the notes to the Financial Statements. The policy on 
Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is uploaded on the Company’s website viz. 
www.blurcircleservices.in  
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

The Management Discussion and Analysis on the operations of the Company as prescribed under Part B of 
Schedule V read with regulation 34(3) of the Listing Regulations, 2015 is provided in a separate section and 
forms part of the Directors’ Report.  
 
CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY. 

There are no changes in the nature of business in the financial year 2020-21 
 
BOARD EVALUATION 

The Board of Directors have laid down the manner for carrying out an annual evaluation of its own 
performance, its various Committees and individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and relevant 
Rules and the Corporate Governance requirements are in compliance with Regulation 17 of Listing Regulations, 
2015. The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the Directors on 
the basis of various criteria such as Board Composition, process, dynamics, quality of deliberations, strategic 
discussions, effective reviews, committee participation, governance reviews etc. The performance of the 
Committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the Committee members on the basis of 
criteria such as Committee composition, process, dynamics, deliberation, strategic discussions, effective reviews 
etc. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of the individual Directors on the 
basis of the criteria such as transparency, analytical capabilities, performance, leadership, ethics and ability to take 
balanced decisions regarding stakeholders etc. 
 
NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

The details of the Board Meetings and other Committee Meetings held during the financial year 2020-21 are 
given in the separate section of Corporate Governance Report. 
 
BOARD COMMITTEES 

All Committees of the Board of Directors are constituted in line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and applicable regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
MANAGEMENT 

There is no Change in Management of the Company during the year under review. 
 
DIRECTORS  

During the year the Company has appointed Ms. Sunita Rani Parida, Mr Prateek Derasari in place of Mrs Supyar 
Kanwar and Mrs. Sangeeta joshi respectively.  Apart from the above, there is no change in the composition of 
Board. 
 
All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down 
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 (b) of Listing Regulations, 2015. 
The details of programme for familiarization of Independent Directors with the Company, nature of the 
business segments in which the Company operates and related matters are put up on the website of the 
Company 
In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors possess the requisite expertise and experience and are 
the persons of high integrity and repute. They fulfill the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Rules made there under and are independent of the management. Further, none of the Directors of the 
Company are disqualified under sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

As per provisions of Section 149 of the 2013 Act, independent directors shall hold office for a term up to five 
consecutive years on the board of a company, but shall be eligible for re-appointment for another term up to five 
years on passing of a special resolution by the company and disclosure of such appointment in Board’s Report. 
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Further Section 152 of the Act provides that the Independent Directors shall not be liable to retire by rotation in 
the Annual General Meeting (‘‘AGM’’) of the Company. 
 
As per Regulation 25 of Listing Regulations (applicable from December 1, 2015), a person shall not serve as an 
independent director in more than seven listed entities: provided that any person who is serving as a whole time 
director in any listed entity shall serve as an independent director in not more than three listed entities. Further, 
independent directors of the listed entity shall hold at least one meeting in a year, without the presence of non-
independent directors and members of the management and all the independent directors shall strive to be 
present at such meeting. 
 
DETAILS OF DIRECTORS / KMP APPOINTED AND RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR 

Sl. 
No. 

Name Designation Date of 
Appointment 

Date of 
Resignation 

1. Mrs. Supyar Kanwar Independent Director 09-12-2020  

2. Mrs Prateek Derasari Independent Director  11-11-2020 

3 Mrs Sangeeta Joshi Independent Director  20/11/2020 

4 Ms Sunita Rani Parida Independent Director 20/11/2020  

 
SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, TRIBUNALS OR 
COURTS 

An order was passed by SEBI vides Order No. WTM/RKA/ ISD/162/2014 dated 19th December 2014 and re-
confirmation Order No. WTM/RKA/ISD/31/2015 dated 20th April 2015 in the matter of dealing in the Shares 
of First Financial Services Limited; where in the Company has been debarred from accessing Capital Market for 
the time being (tenure of suspension has not defined in said order).  
 
Apart from above, there are no other significant and material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts that would 
impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 
 
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION 
BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF REPORT 

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company between 
the end of financial year and date of the report. 
 
DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors confirms 
that: 

1. that in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2021, the applicable accounting 
standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any; 

2. the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2021 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date; 

3. that the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

4. the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; 

5. that the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such 
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 

6. that the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 



19 

 

BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT 

Risk management is embedded in your Company’s operating framework. Your Company believes that managing 
risks helps in maximizing returns. The Company’s approach to addressing business risks is comprehensive and 
includes periodic review of such risks and a framework for mitigating controls and reporting mechanism of such 
risks. The risk management framework is reviewed periodically by the Board and the Audit Committee.  
 
However, provision of Regulation 21 of Listing Regulations for constitution of Risk Management Committee is 
not applicable to the Company. 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT AND INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND ITS ADEQUACY 

Your Company has an Internal Control System, which is commensurate with the size, scale, scope and 
complexity of its operations. To maintain its objectivity and independence, an independent firm of Chartered 
accountants has been appointed as the Internal Auditors, who report to the Chairman of the Audit Committee 
of the Board.  

The Internal Auditors monitor and evaluate the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in your 
Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies of your Company. Based 
on the report of the Internal Auditors placed before the Audit Committee, process owners undertake corrective 
action in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. The internal controls have been reported by 
the Auditors to be adequate and effective during the year. 

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy to report genuine concerns or grievances. The Whistle Blower Policy 
has been posted on the website of the Company i.e. www.bluecircleservices.in  
  
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

Innovation and Technology are synonymous with the Company. The investment in technology acts as a catalyst 
and enables the Company to be innovative. 
 
RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT 

The Company believes that technological obsolescence is a reality. Only progressive research and development 
will help us to measure up to future challenges and opportunities. We invest in and encourage continuous 
innovation. During the year under review, expenditure on research and development is not significant in relation 
to the nature size of operations of your Company. 
 
AUDITORS   

Statutory Auditors 

M/s Mahato Prabir & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Kolkata (FRN-325966E) were appointed as Statutory 
Auditors of the Company for a period of five consecutive years at the 35th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of 
the Members held on September 23, 2020 on a remuneration mutually agreed upon by the Board of Directors 
and the Statutory Auditors. Their appointment was subject to ratification by the Members at every subsequent 
AGM held after the AGM held on September 25, 2020. Pursuant to the amendments made to Section 139 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 effective from May 7, 2018, the requirement of 
seeking ratification of the Members for the appointment of the Statutory Auditors has been withdrawn from the 
Statute. Hence the resolution seeking ratification of the Members for continuance of their appointment at this 
AGM is not being sought. 
 
Secretarial Auditors 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration  of  Managerial  Personnel)  Rules,  2014,  the  Company  has  re-appointed  Mr.  Sanjay  Kumar 
Vyas, Company Secretaries in Practice (C. P. No. 21598)  to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. 
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The Report of the Secretarial Audit Report in the prescribed Form MR-3 is annexed in this Annual Report as 
Annexure II. 
In addition to the above and pursuant to SEBI circular dated 8 February 2020, a report on secretarial compliance 
by Mr. Sanjay Kumar Vyas for the FY 2020-21 has been submitted to BSE. 
 
 
Internal Auditors 

Your Company has an effective internal control and risk-mitigation system, which are constantly assessed and 
strengthened with new/revised standard operating procedures.  The Company’s internal control system  is 
commensurate with its size, scale and complexities of its operations. The internal and operational audit is 
entrusted to M/s. S. Gattani & Co., Chartered Accountant Firm, Kolkata (FRN - 326788E). The main thrust of 
internal audit is to test  and  review  controls,  appraisal  of  risks  and  business  processes,  besides  
benchmarking  controls  with  best practices in the industry. 
The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors actively reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
control systems and suggests improvements to strengthen the same. The Company has a robust Management 
Information System, which is an integral part of the control mechanism. 
The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, Statutory Auditors and the Key Managerial Personnel are 
periodically apprised of the internal audit findings and corrective actions taken. Audit plays a key role in 
providing assurance to the Board of Directors. Significant audit observations and corrective actions taken by the 
management are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board. To maintain its objectivity and independence, 
the Internal Audit function reports to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 
 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, extract of the Annual Return for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2021 made under the provisions of Section 92(3) of the Act is attached as 
Annexure III to this report. 
 
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the same is not applicable to the 
Company as none of employee is drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the said rules and thus 
no disclosure has been provided in this Annual Report. 
 
Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with 
Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 by way of 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2016 dated August 11, 2016 
("Amended Managerial Remuneration Rules, 2016"), the report is not applicable to the Company. 
 
DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT 2013 READ WITH RULES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 22 of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition & Redressal) Act 2013 read with Rules thereunder, the Company has not received any complaint of 
sexual harassment during the year under review. 
 
PARTICULARS UNDER SECTION 134(3) (m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

Since the Company is into the business of trading and investments in shares and securities; the information 
regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Adoption and Innovation, as defined under section 
134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule, 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is reported 
to be NIL. 
 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

The Company has not earned or used any foreign exchange during the year under review. 
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PUBLIC DEPOSITS 

During the year under review, your Company has not accepted any deposit from the public falling within the 
ambit of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 
 
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  

As per Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, a separate section on corporate governance practices followed by the Company, together with 
a certificate from the Company’s Auditors confirming compliance forms an integral part of this Report. 
 
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Statements in this Directors’ Report and Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s 
objectives, projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be “forward-looking statements” within the 
meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed 
or implied.  
 
APPRECIATION 

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation towards the contribution of all the employees of the 
Company and their gratitude to the Company's valued customers, bankers, vendors and members for their 
continued support and confidence in the Company. 
 
 
 
 

Mumbai, August 11, 2021 
 
 
Registered Office : 
Unit No. 324, 3rd Floor, Bldg. No. 9  
Laxmi Plaza, New Link Road 
Andheri (W), Mumbai – 400 053 

By order of the Board 
For BLUE CIRCLE SERVICES LIMITED 

 
 

        DHRUVA NARAYAN JHA 
(DIN : 01286654) 

Chairman & Managing Director 



22 

 

 
 
ANNUAL OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK 

It has been a challenging year with several macro headwinds encompassing Industrial, Infrastructure and Real 
estate market. Slow economic activity and Liquidity challenges impacted the overall demand scenario in the 
industry. During the year Government undertook certain initiatives like reduction of corporate tax rates, creating 
a separate corpus for stalled real-estate projects etc. which could have positive impact in the long run. 

Later part of the year also witnessed an unprecedented outbreak of Corona Virus sending global economies into 
tizzy, impacting supply chain as well as consumer sentiment. Complete lockdown of the country was unparalleled 
to any disruption experienced in the past several decades. It is feared that COVID-19 would leave a deep cut in 
economy and corporate financials. 

During the lockdown period the Company accorded paramount priority to Employee health and welfare and 
ensured that its commitment towards payment to the vendors and work force are duly met. With the help of 
technology, the respective teams were actively engaged with Customers and Vendors. This period was also 
utilized to impart trainings covering a wide range of topics related to Product and Processes. 

Currently there is uncertainty on pace of recovery, but Management is making sure that the organization remains 
fully energized during the period and ready to bounce back on the next opportunity. 

These disruptions impacted the performance of the Company for the year but still managed to secure industry 
level growth. The Management expects that these are short term challenges and continues to pursue its long term 
growth strategy. We are confident to lead the recovery in a shorter period in post pandemic phase and strive to 
sustain profitable growth. 

 

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW   

The Indian financial services industry is vast and diverse consisting of Banks, NBFCs, Capital Market, Insurance 
Sector and the new Payment Bank. India’s gross national savings (GDS) as a percentage of Gross Domestic 
Products (GDP) stood at 30.5% in 2020. With increasing financial penetration, the opportunity in India is very 
high especially in the rural areas for moving from physical savings to financial savings. With increasing internet 
penetration and financial literacy, the future growth prospectus of financial service industry in India is very high. 

 

THREATS & CONCERNS 

The risk of loan loss is high in India. Due to lack of appropriate due diligence and monitoring of loans, the 
number of loan defaults has increased in recent years. The non-performing assets are growing in last few years 
while the GDP has been declining. 

A majority of the banks in India offer online and mobile banking services. Most of the transactions are 
conducted via payment cards, debit and credit cards, and electronic channels such as ATMs. Consequently, both 
private and public banks as well as other financial institutions in India are becoming increasingly vulnerable to 
sophisticated cyber-attacks. 

India has witnessed numerous terror attacks and remains a potential target for such strikes. Stringent regulatory 
requirement and media scrutiny have made it mandatory for financial institutions to perform strict compliance 
checks to prevent the use of money laundering to fund terrorist activities. 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

The Company recognizes that its success is deeply embedded in the success of its human capital. During 2020-
2021, the Company continued to strengthen its HR processes in line with its objective of creating an inspired 
workforce. The employee engagement initiatives included placing greater emphasis on learning and development, 
launching leadership development programme, introducing internal communication, providing opportunities to 
staff to seek inspirational roles through internal job postings, streamlining the performance management system, 

Management Discussion & Analysis 
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making the compensation structure more competitive and streamlining the performance-link rewards and 
incentives. 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES 

The provision of the Section 135 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 as well as the provisions of the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 effective from April 1, 2014 relating to CSR 
Initiatives are not applicable to the Company. 
 
COMPLIANCE 

The Compliance function of the Company is responsible for independently ensuring that operating and business 
units comply with regulatory and internal guidelines. The Compliance Department of the Company is continued 
to play a pivotal role in ensuring implementation of compliance functions in accordance with the directives 
issued by regulators, the Company’s Board of Directors and the Company’s Compliance Policy. The Audit 
Committee of the Board reviews the performance of the Compliance Department and the status of compliance 
with regulatory/internal guidelines on a periodic basis. 
 
The Company has complied with all requirements of regulatory authorities. No penalties/strictures were 
imposed on the Company by stock exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter related to capital 
market during the last three years.  
 
 

Mumbai, August 11, 2021 
 
 
 
Registered Office : 
Unit No. 324, 3rd Floor, Bldg. No. 9  
Laxmi Plaza, New Link Road 
Andheri (W), Mumbai – 400 053 
 

By order of the Board 
For BLUE CIRCLE SERVICES LIMITED 

 
 
 

        DHRUVA NARAYAN JHA 
(DIN : 01286654) 

Chairman & Managing Director 
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Annexure – I 
 

DETAILS OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  

A. (Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

All related party transactions entered during the year were in ordinary course of business and on arm's 
length basis and the same have been disclosed in the Notes to Financial Statements. 

No material related party transactions arising from contracts/ arrangements with related parties referred 
to in the Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 were entered during the year by the Company. 
Accordingly, the disclosure of related party transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is not applicable. 

B. Disclosures pursuant to Regulation 34(3) & 53(f) and Para A of Schedule V of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015  

Sl. 
No. 

In the Account of Disclosures of amount at the year end and the 
maximum amount of loans/advances/Investments 
outstanding during the year. 

Not 
Applicable 

1. Holding Company o Loans and advances in the nature of loans to 
subsidiaries by name and amount 

  o Loans and advances in the nature of loans to associates 
by name and amount 

  o Loans and advances in the nature of loans to 
Firms/Companies in which directors are interested by 
name and amount 

2. Subsidiary o Loans and advances in the nature of loans to 
subsidiaries by name and amount 

  o Loans and advances in the nature of loans to associates 
by name and amount 

  o Loans and advances in the nature of loans to 
Firms/Companies in which directors are interested by 
name and amount 

3. Holding Company o Investment by the loanee in the shares of parent 
Company and subsidiary Company has made a loan or 
advance in the nature of loan. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Place : Mumbai 
Date : August 11, 2021 
 
 
 
 

By order of the Board 
For BLUE CIRCLE SERVICES LIMITED 

 
 
 

        DHRUVA NARAYAN JHA 
(DIN : 01286654) 

Chairman & Managing Director 
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Annexure II 
Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED March 31,2021 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
         
To, 
The Members, 
Blue Circle Services Limited 
Mumbai 
 
 
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and adherence to good 
corporate practices by Blue Circle Services Limited (hereinafter called as 'the Company').The secretarial audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 
 
Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives 
during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period 
covering the financial year ended on 31stMarch 2021, complied with the applicable statutory provisions listed hereunder 
and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on 31 March 2021, according to the provisions of: 
 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 
 

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 
 
iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 
 
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 
 
v. The following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

(‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable: 
 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 

2011; 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,2015, as 

amended; 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 

2009 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital andDisclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)Regulations, 2014; 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)Regulations, 2008; 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share TransferAgents)  

(Amendment) Regulations, 2006 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; 



26 

 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 1998 and The Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018; and 

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, as amended. 

vi. Rules, regulations and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India as per Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and 
its circulars, Master circulars, notifications, to the extent as applicable to Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking 
Financial Companies. 

 
vii. Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002 and its circulars, notifications. 
 
viii. Anti-Money Laundering Regulation issued by RBI and various circulars and Guidelines thereunder. 
 
ix. Employee Laws – 
 

• The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and Payment of Gratuity (Central) Rules, 1972 
• The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 and Payment of Bonus Rules, 1975 
• The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948 
• The Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 & the scheme provided there under 

acts as prescribed under Shop and Establishment Act of State and various local authorities. 
 

xi. The Negotiable Instrument Act, 1881 
 
xii. The Indian Stamp Act, 1899 and the State Stamp Acts 
 
xiii. The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 
 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:- 
i. Secretarial Standards pursuant to section 118(10) of the Act, issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 

India. 
ii. Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Ltd. and Calcutta Stock Exchange Association Ltd. 

as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, rules, regulations, 
directions, guidelines, standards, etc. mentioned above except the following: 
 

1. Regulation 14 of SEBI Exchange Regulations, Non-Payment of Listing Fees trading in the Shares of the 
company has been restricted (moved to GSM). The Company is yet to pay Listing Fees for FY 2018-19 to 
2021-22. 
 

2. The Company has not appointed Qualified Company Secretary as Compliance Officer as per Regulation 6 of 
SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015 and as per provisions of Companies Act, 2013; 

 
3. SEBI has put the company under shell category and Forensic Audit has been conducted. 

 
4. Form INC-22A for ACTIVE compliance is not filed by the Company; 
 

 
I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of executive 
directors, non-executive directors and independent directors including one woman director. 
 
There is no change in the composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review. 
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
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clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting by the 
directors. The decisions were carried unanimously. 
 
I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
 
I further report that during the audit period there was no other event/action having major bearing on the 
Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, and standards. 
 
Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure A’ and forms an integral 
part of this report. 
 
 

 
 

 
SANJAY KUMAR VYAS 
Practicing Company Secretaries 
ACS No. 55689, C.P. No. 21598 
 
Place: Kolkata 
Date: August 06, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



28 

 

ANNEXURE – A 
 

To 
The Members, 
M/s. Blue Circle Services Limited 
Mumbai 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

 
2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 

the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 

company. 
 

4. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

 
5. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy 

or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
 

 
 

 
 
SANJAY KUMAR VYAS 
Practicing Company Secretaries 
ACS No. 55689, C.P. No. 21598 
 
Place: Kolkata 
Date: August 06, 2021 
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Annexure - III 
 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
As on the financial year ended 31.03.2021 

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 12(1) of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

FORM NO. MGT - 9 
 

I. Registration & Other Details 

CIN L74140MH1983PLC029378 

Registration Date 22/02/1983 

Name of the Company Blue Circle Services Limited 

Category / Sub-Category of the Company Category : Company having Share Capital 
Sub-Category : Indian Non-Government Company 

Address of the Registered Office and contact details Unit No. 324, 3rd Floor, Bldg. No. 9  
Laxmi Plaza, New Link Road 
Andheri (W), Mumbai – 400 053 
Tel : +91 22 69969555 

Whether listed company Listed Company 

Name, address and contact details of 
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any 

Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Ltd. 
No. 9, Shiv Shakti Ind. Estate, Gr. Floor, J. R. Boricha Marg, 
Lower Parel, Mumbai-400 011 
Tel : +91 22 2301 8261 / 0771 

 

II. Principal Business Activities of the Company 

All the Business Activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated: 

Name and Description of main Businesses NIC Code of 
Business 

% of Total Turnover of 
the Company 

Trading & Investments in Shares & Securities 66110 100.00% 

 

III. Details of Subsidiary / Associate / Holding Companies 

Name & Address of 
Company 

CIN / GLN Holding / Subsidiary 
/ Associate 

% of Shares Held Applicable Section 

Not Any Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable 

 

IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as % of Total Equity) 
Category wise Shareholding 

Category of Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % 
Change 
during 

the year 
Demat Physical Total 

% of 
Total 
Shares 

Demat Physical Total 
% of 
Total 
Shares 

A. Promoters          

(1) Indian          

a) Individual / HUF - - - - - - - -  

b) Central Govt. (s) - - - - - - - -  

c) State Govt. (s) - - - - - - - -  

d) Bodies Corporate 685600 - 685600 3.37% 685600 - 685600 3.37% - 

e) Banks / FIs - - - - - - - -  

f) Any Other ….. - - - - - - - -  

Sub Total A(1) 685600 - 685600 3.37% 685600 - 685600 3.37% - 

(2) Foreign          

a) NRIs - Individuals - - - - - - - -  

b) Other – Individuals - - - - - - - -  

c) Bodies Corporate - - - - - - - -  

d) Banks / FIs - - - - - - - -  

e) Any Other …… - - - - - - - -  

Sub Total A(2)          

Total Shareholding of 
Promoters (A1) + (A2) 

 
685600 

 
- 

 
685600 3.37% 685600 - 685600 3.37% - 

B. Public Shareholding          

(1) Institutions - - - - - - - -  

a) Mutual Funds / UTI - - - - - - - -  

b) Banks / FI - - - - - - - -  

c) Central Govt. (s) - - - - - - - -  

d) State Govt. (s) - - - - - - - -  

e) Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - -  

f) Insurance Companies - - - - - - - -  
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g) FIIs - - - - - - - -  

h) Foreign Venture Capital 
Funds 

- - - - - - - -  

i) Others (Specify) - - - - - - - -  

Sub Total B(1) - - - - - - - -  

(2) Non-Institutions          

a) Bodies Corporate          

i. Indians 14581931 - 14581931 71.67% 13826037 - 13826037 67.95% 3.72% 

ii. Overseas - - - - - - - -  

b) Individuals          

i. Individual Shareholders 
holding nominal share 

capital up to ` 2 lakh 197866 6100 203966 1.00% 212391 6000 218391 1.07 (0.07)% 

ii. Individual Shareholders 
holding nominal share 

capital in excess of ` 2 

lakh 4638815 200000 4838815 23.78% 5581531 

-  
-
  5581531 27.43% (3.65)% 

c) Others (Specify)          

i. HUF 3772 - 3772 0.02% 3964 - 3964 0.02% - 

ii. Clearing Members 21909 - 21909 0.11% 20470 - 20470 0.10% 0.01% 

iii. NRI 7 - 7 0.00% 7 - 7 0.00% - 

iv. LLP 7000 - 7000 0.03% 7000 - 7000 0.03%  

v. NBFC 4000 - 4000 0.02% 4000 - 4000 0.02%  

Sub Total B(2) 19455300 206100 19661400 19455300  
19455300 206100 

 
19661400 

96.63% - 

Total Public Shareholding 
B = B(1) + B(2) 

19455300 206100 19661400 19455300  
19455300 206100 

 
19661400 96.63% - 

C. Shares held by 
Custodian for GDRs & 
ADRs 

- - - - - - - -  

Grand Total (A+B+C) 201409000 2061000 203470000 100.00 20140900 206100 20347000 100.00 0.00% 

 

ii) Shareholding of Promoters 

Shareholders Name 

Shareholding at the beginning of the year 
Shareholding during and at the end of the 

year % change in 
shareholding 

during the 
year 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company 

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company 

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total shares 

Prime Capital Market Limited 6,150,000 3.02% Nil 6,15,000 3.02% Nil - 

Unisys Softwares & Holding Ind. Ltd. 706,007 0.35% Nil 70,600 0.35% Nil - 

 

iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (Please specify, if there is no change) 
Particulars Shareholding at the beginning of 

the year 
Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year 
Date of 
Changes 

Reason 
for 

Changes No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
shares of the 

Company 

At the beginning of the year 6856007 3.37%   
Not Applicable 

At the end of the Year   685600 3.37% 

  Note : Change in face value of Equity Shares from Rs. 1/- to Rs. 10/- 

 
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Promoters Shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for increase/decrease (e.g. Allotment / 
transfer / bonus / sweat equity etc): 

Name of Promoter / Promoter Group Opening 
Bal 

Shares 
Increase 

Shares 
Decrease 

Date of Increase 
/ Decrease 

Reason for Changes 

N. A. - - - - - 

 
iv) Shareholding of Top Ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs & ADRs) 

For Each of the Top 10 
Shareholders 

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Date wise increase/ 
decrease in 

Shareholding 

Cumulative Shareholding during 
and at the end of the year 

No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company 

No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company 

Divya Drishti Merchants Pvt. Ltd. 884764 4.35% Not Any 884764 4.35% 

Divya Drishti Traders Pvt. Ltd. 881537 4.33% Not Any 881537 4.33% 

Decent Vincom Pvt. Ltd. 468537 3.53% Not Any 468537 2.30% 

Helot Properties Pvt. Ltd. 566768 2.79% Not Any 566768 2.79% 

Rangan Vincom Private Limited 540548 2.66% Not Any 540548 2.66% 

DKS Enterprises Private Limited 518007 2.55% Not Any 518007 2.55% 
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Flame Dealers Private Limited 476673           2.34%  Not Any 476673           2.34%  

Esquire Enclave Private Limited 473729 0.03% Not Any 473729 2.33% 

Fairlink Housing Private Limited 401938           1.98%  Not Any 401938           1.98%  

Mayurpankh Vincom Pvt. Limited 4440696            2.18%  Not Any 444069           2.18%  

 

v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

For Each of Directors & KMP 

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Shareholding during the year and at the 
end of the year 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total shares of 
the Company 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total shares of the 
Company 

 

At the beginning of the year / at the end of the year Nil - Nil - 
Date wise Increase/Decrease in shareholding during 
the year specifying the reasons for increase/decrease  
(e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc): 

Not Applicable (As none of Director and Key Managerial Person was holding 
Shares in their names either at the beginning or at the end of year 

 

V. INDEBTEDNESS 

  In Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment 

 Secured Loans 
Excluding deposits 

` in Lac 

Unsecured 
Loans 

` in Lac 

Deposits 

` in Lac 

Total Indebtedness 

` in Lac 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year Nil Nil Nil Nil 

i. Principal Amount     

ii. Interest due but not Paid     

iii. Interest Accrued but not due     

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 Addition     

 Reduction     

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year Nil Nil Nil Nil 

i. Principal Amount     

ii. Interest due but not Paid     

iii. Interest Accrued but not due     

Total (i+ii+iii) Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 
Sr. 
No. 

Particulars of Remuneration Dhruva Narayan Jha 

(MD) (in `) 

Ram Prakash Chowdhary 

(CFO) (in `) 

1. Gross Salary Nil 2,36,000/- 

2. Value of Perquisites Nil Nil 

3. Stock Options Nil Nil 

4. Sweat Equity Nil Nil 

5. Commission Nil Nil 

6. Others (Please specify) Nil Nil 

 

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 

Type Section of the 
Companies 

Act 

Brief 
Description 

Details of Penalty / 
Punishment / Compounding 

fees imposed 

Authority 
[RD / NCLT / 

COURT] 

Appeal made, if any (give 
details) 

A. Company 

Penalty 

No Instance Punishment 

Compounding 

B. Directors 

Penalty 

No Instance Punishment 

Compounding 

C. Other Officers in Default 
Penalty 

No Instance Punishment 

Compounding 

 

Note: The above mentioned data is on the basis of 31.03.2019 company has not received the shareholding pattern as on 31.03.2021 
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 Annexure –V 

 
Disclosure as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 
 

1. Ratio of the remuneration of each Director and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) to the median remuneration 
of the employees of the Company and percentage increase in remuneration of the Directors and KMPs in the 
Financial Year is as under: 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director / 
KMP 

Designation Increase (%) Ratio of 
Remuneration 
of each Director & 
KMP to Median 
Remuneration of 
Employees 

1. Ram Prakash 
Chowdhary 

Chief Financial Officer -  

 
2. No. of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31st March 2021 – 3 (Three) 
 
3. During the Financial Year 2020-21, there is no increase in the median remuneration of employees; 

 
4. There was no increase in the salaries of managerial personnel in the financial year 2020-21. 

 
It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Nomination & Remuneration Policy of the Company. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended March 31, 2021, in 
terms of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (The “Listing Regulations”). 
 
Corporate Governance is modus operandi of governing a corporate entity which includes a set of systems, 
procedures and practices which ensure that the Company is managed in the best interest of all corporate 
stakeholders i.e. shareholders, employees, suppliers, customers and society in general. Fundamentals of Corporate 
Governance include transparency, accountability, reporting and independence. For accomplishment of the 
objectives of ensuring fair Corporate Governance, the Government of India has put in place a framework based 
on the stipulations contained under the Companies Act, SEBI Regulations, Accounting Standards, Secretarial 
Standards, etc. Corporate Governance has become a buzzword in the corporate world. Globalizations, widespread 
of shareholders, changing ownership structure, greater expectations, etc. have made a good Corporate Governance 
sin-quo-nun of modern management. 
 
COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Company’s governance philosophy is based on trusteeship, transparency and accountability. As a corporate 
citizen, our business fosters a culture of ethical behavior and disclosures aimed at building trust of our 
stakeholders. The Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, Internal Code of Conduct for Regulating, 
Monitoring and Reporting of Trades by Insiders and the Charter–Business for Peace are an extension of our values 
and reflect our commitment to ethical business practices, integrity and regulatory compliances. 
 
The Company’s governance framework is based on the following principles: 

 Appropriate composition and size of the Board, with each member bringing in expertise in their respective 
domains; 

 Timely disclosure of material operational and financial information to the stakeholders; 

 Availability of Information to the members of the Board and Board Committees to enable them to 
discharge their fiduciary duties; 

 Systems and processes in place for internal control; and 

 Proper business conduct by the Board, Senior Management and Employees. 
 
GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE 

The Corporate Governance Structure at Blue Circle Services Ltd. (BCSL) is as under:- 
 

1. Board of Directors: The Board is entrusted with the ultimate responsibility of the management, directions 
and performance of the Company. As its primary role is fiduciary in nature, the Board provides leadership, 
strategic guidance, objective and independent view to the Company’s management while discharging its 
responsibilities, thus ensuring that the management adheres to ethics, transparency and disclosure. 
 

2. Committees of the Board: The Board has constituted the following committees viz. Audit Committee, 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee. Each of said 
Committee has been managed to operate within a given framework. 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Size & Composition of Directors 

The Board has four members with an executive Chairman. The Independent Directors on the Board are 
competent and highly respected professionals from their respective fields and have vast experience in general 
corporate management, finance, taxation and other allied fields which enable them to contribute effectively to the 

Annexure to the Directors’ Report 
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Company in their capacity as members of the Board. The day to day management of the Company is conducted by 
Managing Director subject to supervisions and control of the Board. 
 
The composition and category of the Board of Directors as at March 31, 2021, the number of other 
Directorships/Committee memberships held by them and their other details are as under: 
 

Name Category DIN 
Date of  

Appointment 

Committee 
Membership in 

other Listed 
Cos. 

Committee 
Chairman-ship 
in other Listed  

Cos. 

No. of 
Directorship 

in other Listed  
Cos. 

Dhruva Narayan 
Jha* 

Managing 
Director 

01286654 09/05/2019 4 4 4 

Ramesh Dan 
Independent 

Director 
00113986 20/11/2020 1 1 1 

Supyar Kanwar 
Independent 

Director 
08484566 09/08/2021 1 1 1 

Sunita Rani Parida 
Independent 

Director 
08957699 20/11/2020 

1 1 1 

         *Chairman 
 

Notes: 

1. Directorships exclude Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and Section 8 Companies. 

2. Chairmanship/Membership of Committee only includes Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationships 
Committee in Indian Public Limited companies other than M/s. Blue Circle Services Limited.  

3. Members of the Board of the Company do not have membership of more than ten Board-level Committees 
or Chairperson of more than five such Committees. 

4. Directors who are on the Board are not related with other Directors. 

5. Details of Director(s) retiring or being re-appointed are given in notice to Annual General Meeting. 

Chairman and Managing Director 

His primary role is to provide leadership to the Board in achieving goals of the Company. He is responsible for 
transforming the Company into a successful organization. He is responsible, inter-alia, for the working of the 
Board and for ensuring that all relevant issues are placed before the Board and that all Directors are encouraged to 
provide their expert guidance on the relevant issues raised in the meetings of the Board. He is also responsible for 
formulating the corporate strategy along with other members of the Board of Directors. His role, inter alia, 
includes: 
 

 Provide leadership to the Board and preside over all Board and General Meetings. 

 Achieve goals in accordance with Company’s overall vision. 

 Ensure that Board decisions are aligned with Company`s strategic policy. 

 Ensure to place all relevant matters before the Board and encourage healthy participation by all Directors 
to enable them to provide their expert guidance. 

 Monitor the core management team. 
 
Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Directors) play a critical role in balancing the functioning 
of the Board by providing independent judgments on various issues raised in the Board Meetings like formulation 
of business strategies, monitoring of performances, etc. Their role, inter- alia, includes: 
 

 Impart balance to the Board by providing independent judgment. 

 Provide feedback on Company’s strategy and performance. 

 Provide effective feedback and recommendations for further improvements. 
 
Board Independence 



35 

 

The Non-Executive Independent Directors fulfill the conditions of independence as specified in Section 149 of 
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under and to meet with requirements of Regulation 16(b) of Listing 
Regulations. Further, none of the Independent Director is serving more than seven listed companies. In case 
he/she is serving as a Whole-Time Director in any listed company, does not hold the position of Independent 
Director in more than three listed companies. A formal letter of appointment to Independent Director as provided 
in Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations has been issued and draft of the same has been disclosed on 
website of the Company. 

 

Board Meetings 

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on business strategies/policies and review the financial 
performance of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Board Meetings are pre-scheduled and a tentative annual 
calendar of the Board is circulated to the Directors well in advance to facilitate the Directors to plan their 
schedules. In case of business exigencies, the Board’s calls the meeting as pre requirements of prevailing Act. 
 
The notice and detailed agenda along with the relevant notes and other material information are sent in advance 
separately to each Director and in exceptional cases tabled at the meeting with the approval of the Board. This 
ensures timely and informed decisions by the Board. The Board reviews the performance of the Company. 
 
Information placed before the Board 

The Company provides the information as set out in Regulation 17 read with Part A of Schedule II of Listing 
Regulations to the Board and the Board Committees to the extent it is applicable and relevant. Such information is 
submitted either as part of the agenda papers in advance of the respective meetings or by way of presentations and 
discussions during the meeting. 
 
Post Meeting Mechanism 

The important decisions taken at the Board / Board Committee meetings are communicated to the concerned 
department/s and/or division. 
 
Board Support 

The Company Secretary attends the Board meetings and advises the Board on Compliances with applicable laws 
and governance. 
 
Familiarization Programme for Directors 

At the time of appointing Director, a formal letter of appointment is given to him/her, which inter alia explains 
the role, function, duties and responsibilities expected of him/her as a Director of the Company. The Director is 
also explained in detail the Compliance required from him/her under the Companies Act, 2013, requirements of 
Listing Regulations and other relevant regulations and affirmation taken with respect to the same. The Chairman & 
Managing Director also has one to one discussion with the newly appointed Director to familiarize him/her with 
the Company’s operations. Further, the Company has put in place a system to familiarize the Independent 
Directors about the Company, its services, business and the on-going events relating to the Company. 
 
Further, at the time of appointment of Independent Director, the Company issues a formal letter of appointment 
outlining his/her role, function, duties and responsibilities as a Director. The draft format of the letter of 
appointment is available on Company website viz. www.bluecirleservices.in 
 
Details of Board Meetings 

The Board of Directors met 7 times on 16th June, 30th June, 14th August, 12th October, 11th November, 20th 
November in year 2020 and on 12th February in the year 2021 during the financial year 2020-2021. 
 
Attendance of Board of Directors at the Board Meeting and at the last Annual General Meeting: 

 

Name Designation 
Attendance at the 

AGM 
Meetings 
Attended 
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Dhruva Narayan Jha* Chairman & Managing Director Yes 7 
Ramesh Dan Independent Director Yes 7 
Supyar Kanwar Independent Director Yes 7 
Sunita Rani Parida Independent Director NA 1 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors (“the Audit Committee”) is entrusted with the responsibility to 
supervise the Company’s internal controls and financial reporting process. The composition, quorum, powers, role 
and scope are in accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 6 of the Companies 
(Meetings of the Board and is Powers) Rules, 2014 and the provisions of Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations. 
All members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and bring in expertise in the fields of finance, taxation, 
economics, risk and International finance. It functions in accordance with its terms of reference that defines its 
authority, responsibility and reporting function. 
 
The Audit Committee was re-constituted w.e.f. 20th November 2020 wherein Mrs. Sunita Rani Parida have been 
appointed as a member of Committee  
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 

The Audit Committee inter alia performs the functions of approving Annual Internal Audit Plan, review of 
financial reporting system, internal controls system, discussion on financial results, interaction with Statutory and 
Internal Auditors, one–on-one meeting with Statutory and Internal Auditors, recommendation for the 
appointment of Statutory Auditors and their remuneration, recommendation for the appointment and 
remuneration of Internal Auditors, Review of Business Risk Management Plan, Management Discussions and 
Analysis, Review of Internal Audit Reports, significant related party transactions. The Company has framed the 
Audit Committee Charter for the purpose of effective compliance of provisions of section 177 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations. In fulfilling the above role, the Audit Committee has 
powers to investigate any activity within its terms of reference, to seek information from employees and to obtain 
outside legal and professional advice. 

 

FUNCTIONS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The Audit Committee, while reviewing the Annual Financial Statements also reviews the applicability of various 
Accounting Standards (AS) referred to in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. Compliance of the Accounting 
Standards as applicable to the Company has been ensured in the preparation of the Financial Statements for the 
year ended March 31, 2021. 
 
The Audit Committee bridges the gap between the Internal Auditors and the Statutory Auditors. To ensure good 
Governance, the Company has been rotating Partners of Statutory Auditors. The Statutory Auditors are 
responsible for performing Independent audit of the Company’s financial statements in accordance with the 
generally accepted auditing practices and issuing reports based on such audits, while the Internal Auditors are 
responsible for the internal risk controls. 
 
Besides the above, Chairman and Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer, the representatives of the Statutory 
Auditors and the Internal Auditors are permanent invitees to the Audit Committee Meetings. The Company 
Secretary acts as a Secretary to the Committee as required by Regulation 18(1) (e) of the Listing Regulations. 
 
The Company follows best practices in financial reporting. The Company has been reporting on quarterly basis, 
the Un-audited Financial Results as required by the Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. The Company’s 
quarterly Un-audited Standalone Financial Results are made available on the web-site of the Company viz. 
www.bluecircleservices.in and are also sent to the Stock Exchanges where the Company’s equity shares are listed 
for display at their respective websites.  

 

The Audit Committee also oversees and reviews the functioning of a vigil mechanism (implemented in the 
Company as a Whistle Blower Policy) and reviews the finding of investigation into cases of material nature and the 
actions taken in respect thereof. 
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND GOVERNANCE PROCESSES 

The Company continuously invests in strengthening its internal control and processes. The Audit Committee along 
with the CFO formulates a detailed plan to the Internal Auditors for the year, which is reviewed at the Audit 
Committee Meetings. The Internal Auditors attend the meetings of Audit Committee at regular intervals and 
submit their recommendations to the Audit Committee and provide a road map for the future. 

 

MEETINGS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The members of Audit Committee met Five times on 30th June, 14th August, 12th October, 11th November in 
year 2020 and on 12th February in year 2021 during the financial year ended on 31st March 2021. 

Name Position Number of Meetings Held Meetings Attended 

Mr. Dhruva Narayan Jha Member 5 5 

Mr. Supyar Kanwar Member 5 5 

Mr. Ramesh Dan Chairman 5 5 

 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of three Non-executives, Independent Directors. All 
members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are financially literate and they have accounting or 
related financial management expertise. The Composition of Remuneration and Nomination Committee is 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of Listing Regulations. 

 
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee was re-constituted w.e.f. 20th November 2020 wherein Mrs. Sunita 
Rani Parida have been appointed as a member of the Committee  

 
Terms of Reference 

The Board has framed the Remuneration and Nomination Committee Charter which ensure effective Compliance 
of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of Listing Regulations, which are as follows: 

 Reviewing the overall compensation policy, service agreements and other employment conditions of 
Managing/Whole-time Director(s) and Senior Management (one level below the Board): 

 to help in determining the appropriate size, diversity and composition of the Board; 

 to recommend to the Board appointment/reappointment and removal of Directors; 

 to frame criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Directors; 

 to recommend to the Board remuneration payable to the Directors (while fixing the remuneration to 
Executive Directors the restrictions contained in the Companies Act, 2013 is to be considered); 

 to create an evaluation framework for Independent Directors and the Board; 

 to provide necessary reports to the Chairman after the evaluation process is completed by the Directors; 

 to assist in developing a succession plan for the Board;  

 to assist the Board in fulfilling responsibilities entrusted from time-to-time; 

 Delegation of any of its powers to any member of the Committee or the Compliance Officer. 

POLICY FOR SELECTION AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR 
REMUNERATION 

The Nomination and Remuneration (N&R) Committee has adopted a Charter which, inter alia, deals with the 
manner of selection of Board of Directors and CEO & Managing Director and their remuneration. This Policy is 
accordingly derived from the said Charter. 

 
Criteria of selection of Non-Executive Directors 
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 The Non-Executive Directors shall be of high integrity with relevant expertise and experience so as to have a 
diverse Board with Directors having expertise in the fields of accounting, finance, taxation, law etc. However 
Women Director is exempted from said criteria. 

 In case of appointment of Independent Directors, the N&R Committee shall satisfy itself with regard to the 
independent nature of the Directors vis-à-vis the Company so as to enable the Board to discharge its 
function and duties effectively. 

 The N&R Committee shall ensure that the candidate identified for appointment as a Director is not 
disqualified for appointment under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 The N&R Committee shall consider the following attributes / criteria, whilst recommending to the Board 
the candidature for appointment as Director – 

a) Qualification, expertise and experience of the Directors in their respective fields; 

b) Personal, Professional or business standing; 

c) Diversity of the Board. 

 In case of re-appointment of Non-Executive Directors, the Board shall take into consideration the 
performance evaluation of the Director and his engagement level. 

Remuneration 

The Non-Executive Directors shall be entitled to receive remuneration by way of sitting fees, reimbursement of 
expenses for participation in the Board / Committee meetings. A Non-Executive Director shall be entitled to 
receive sitting fees for each meeting of the Board or Committee of the Board attended by him, of such sum as may 
be approved by the Board of Directors within the overall limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and 
The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

CEO & Managing Director – Criteria for selection / appointment 

For the purpose of selection of the CEO & MD, the N&R Committee shall identify persons of integrity who 
possess relevant expertise, experience and leadership qualities required for the position and shall take into 
consideration recommendation, if any, received from any member of the Board. 

The Committee will also ensure that the incumbent fulfills such other criteria with regard to age and other 
qualifications as laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 or other applicable laws. 

Remuneration for the CEO & Managing Director  

 At the time of appointment or re-appointment, the CEO & Managing Director shall be paid such 
remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Company (which includes the N&R Committee and 
the Board of Directors) and the CEO & Managing Director within the overall limits prescribed under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

 The remuneration shall be subject to the approval of the members of the Company in General Meeting. 

 The remuneration of the CEO & Managing Director is paid by way of salary, allowances, perquisites, 
amenities and retirement benefits.  

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations, the Board 
has carried out the annual evaluation of its own performance, its Committees and Directors individually. A 
structured questionnaire was prepared after circulating the draft forms, covering various aspects of the Board’s 
functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and 
performance of specific duties, obligations and governance. 

The performance evaluation of the Chairman and Managing Director and the Non Independent Directors was 
carried out by the Independent Directors. The Directors express their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 
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Meetings of Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

The members of Nomination & Remuneration Committee met two times on 16th June 2020 and 20th November 
in year 2020 during the financial year ended on 31st March 2021. 

 

Name Position Number of Meetings Held Meetings Attended 

Mr. Supyar Kanwar Chairman 2 2 

Mr. Ramesh Dan Member 2 2 

Mrs. Sunita Rani Parida Member 2 2 

 
STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

The Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee is constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 20 of the SEBI 
LODR Regulations 2015, read with Section 178 of the Act and rules made thereunder. 
 
The terms of reference of the Committee are: 

 transfer/transmission of shares/debentures and such other securities as may be issued by the Company 
from time to time; 

 issue of duplicate share certificates for shares/debentures and other securities reported lost, defaced or 
destroyed, as per the laid down procedure; 

 issue new certificates against subdivision of shares, renewal, split or consolidation of share certificates / 
certificates relating to other securities; 

 issue and allot right shares / bonus shares pursuant to a Rights Issue / Bonus Issue made by the Company, 
subject to such approvals as may be required; 

 to grant Employee Stock Options pursuant to approved Employees’ Stock Option Scheme(s), if any, and to 
allot shares pursuant to options exercised; 

 to issue and allot debentures, bonds and other securities, subject to such approvals as may be required; 

 to approve and monitor dematerialization of shares / debentures / other securities and all matters incidental 
or related thereto; 

 to authorize the Company Secretary and Head Compliance / other Officers of the Share Department to 
attend to matters relating to non receipt of annual reports, notices, non receipt of declared dividend / 
interest, change of address for correspondence etc. and to monitor action taken; 

 monitoring expeditious redressal of investors / stakeholders grievances; 

 all other matters incidental or related to shares, debentures and other securities of the Company. 
 

The Share Department of the Company and the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Purva Sharegistry (India) 
Private Limited attend to all grievances of the shareholders and investors received directly or through SEBI, Stock 
Exchanges and Registrar of Companies etc. 
 
The Minutes of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are noted by the Board of Directors at the Board Meetings. 
 
Continuous efforts are made to ensure that grievances are more expeditiously redressed to the complete 
satisfaction of the investors. Shareholders are requested to furnish their telephone numbers and email addresses to 
facilitate prompt action. 

 
Compliance Officer 

The Company has appointed not yet appointed any Company Secretary as its Compliance officer as a Compliance 
Officer within the meaning of Regulation 6 of Listing Regulations so Mr. Dhruva Narayan Jha acting as 
Compliance Officer of the company  
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Composition of Committee and Meetings attended 

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee was re-constituted w.e.f. 20th November 2020 wherein Ms. Sunita Rani 
Parida has been appointed as member of Committee  
 
During the year, one meetings of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee were held on 20th November in year 
2020 during the financial year ended on 31st March 2021. 

 
Brief Details of Names, Position, Category and meeting attended by members of Committee is as follows: 

Name Position Category Meetings Attended 

Mr. Supyar Kanwar Chairman Independent, Non-Executive 1 

Mr. Ramesh Dan Member Independent, Non-Executive 1 

Mrs. Sunita Rani Parida Member Independent, Non-Executive 1 

 
Details of Shareholders’ Complaints 

There was Nil Complaint pending at the beginning of the Financial Year. During the year the Company did not 
receive any compliant from any of the shareholders. Further, there was no pending complaint at the close of the 
financial year. 
 
As required under Regulation 40(9) of Listing Regulations, a Certificate on half-yearly basis confirming due 
compliance of share transfer formalities by the Company from Practicing Company Secretary has been submitted 
to the Stock Exchanges within stipulated time. 
 
The Company has designated email id blue.circl@gmail.com to lodge Investor complaints. Apart from this, the 
SEBI has also facilitated Investors to lodge complaints directly on SCORES on SEBI website for faster addressing 
and resolutions of Investor Complaints. 

 
Independent Directors’ Meeting 

During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on March 24, 2021, inter alia, to discuss: 

 Evaluation of the Performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a whole; 

 Evaluation of the Performance of Chairman of the Company; taking into account the views of the Executive 
and Non Executive Directors. 

 Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the Management and the 
Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties. 

All the Independent Directors were present at the Meeting. 
 
GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

Location & time for the last three Annual General Meetings: 

Annual General Meeting Date & Time Venue 

37th Annual General Meeting 
15th September, 2020 at 

03:30 P.M 

Unit No. 323 & 324, 3rd Floor, Building No. 9, 
Laxmi Plaza, New Link Road, Andheri (West), 

Mumbai-400 053 

36th Annual General Meeting 
23rd September, 2020 

11.00 A.M 

Unit No. 323 & 324, 3rd Floor, Building No. 9, 
Laxmi Plaza, New Link Road, Andheri (West), 

Mumbai-400 053 

35th Annual General Meeting 
27th  September 2020, 

11.00 AM 

Unit No. 323 & 324, 3rd Floor, Building No. 9, 
Laxmi Plaza, New Link Road, Andheri (West),  

Mumbai-400 053 

 
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting 

No Extra-Ordinary General Meeting was held during the financial year ended on 31st March 2021. 

mailto:blue.circl@gmail.com


41 

 

 
POSTAL BALLOT 

No Resolution has been passed during last two out of three financial years by way of Postal Ballot. 

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, there is no item on the agenda that needs approval by Postal Ballot. 

SPECIAL RESOLUTION PASSED IN LAST THREE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS: 
 

No Special Resolution has been proposed or passed during remaining two out of last three Annual General 
Meetings. 

BOARD DISCLOSURES 

Compliance with Governance Framework 

The Company is in compliance with all mandatory requirements of Listing Regulations, 2015.  

STRICTURES AND PENALTIES 

 SEBI has vides its’ interim order No. WTM/MPB/ISD/26/2017 dated September 14, 2017 ordered for 
the forensic Audit of the Books of Accounts of the Company and the report of the Forensic Auditors in 
the matter is still awaited. 

 The Shares of the Company have been placed under GSM Stage VI based vide Exchange notice no. 

20200903- 37 dated September 3, 2019 for non-payment of Listing Fees and shall continue to remain 

in GSM Stage VI until further directions. 

 The trading in the Equity Shares of the Company is under suspension due to non-payment of Listing 

Fees for FY 2020-21. 

 Penalty of Rs 1,06,200/-  has been imposed by BSE under Regulation 6(1) of SEBI LODR for Non 
appointment of Company Secretary  

 

Apart from above, no strictures or penalties have been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or 

by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) or by any statutory authority on any matters related to 

capital markets activities during the last three years. 

 
DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT 

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the Accounting Standards referred to in 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The significant accounting policies which are consistently applied have 
been set out in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

       DETAILS OF UTILISATION OF FUND RAISED 

During the year, the Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment, right issue or qualified 

institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32(7A) of the Listing Regulations. 

 
RISK MANAGEMENT 

Risk management is embedded in your Company’s operating framework. Your Company believes that managing 
risks helps in maximizing returns. The Company’s approach to addressing business risks is comprehensive and 
includes periodic review of such risks and a framework for mitigating controls and reporting mechanism of such 
risks. The risk management framework is examined periodically by the Board and the Audit Committee. 

SEBI / STOCK EXCHANGE COMPLIANCE 

The Company has failed to pay Annual Listing Fees for FY 2018-19, 2019-20 and  2020-21 which is in 

violation of Regulation 14 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

(“Listing Regulations”). 
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Apart from above instance, the Company has complied with all requirements of the Listing Agreement 

entered into with Stock Exchanges and also SEBI Listing Regulations. Consequently there were no strictures 

or penalties imposed either by SEBI or Stock Exchange or any Statutory Authority for non-compliance of any 

matter related to the Capital Markets during the last three years. 

 

FEE DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY CLAUSE 10(K), PART C, SCHEDULE V OF THE LISTING 
REGULATIONS: 

Total fees for all services paid by the company and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to M/s.  Mahato  

Prabir & Associates, Statutory Auditors of the Company and other firms in the network entity of which the 

statutory auditor is a part, as included in the consolidated financial statements of the company for the year 

ended 31 March, 2021, is as follows: 

 
 Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 

Fees for audit and related services paid to Mahato Prabir & Associates and 

affiliates firms and to entities of the network of which the statutory auditor is 

a part (  

 
20,000 

 
20,000 

 

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING 

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading in accordance with the SEBI 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (The PIT Regulations); with a view to regulate trading in 
securities by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The Code requires pre-clearance for dealing 
in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares by the Directors and the designated 
employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company and during 
the period when the trading window is closed. The Company Secretary is responsible for implementation of the 
Code. 

All Board Directors and the designated employees have confirmed compliance with the Code. 

CREDIT RATINGS 

During the year under review, the Company does not have any borrowings and has not raised any funds. 

Hence, disclosure pertaining to utilization of funds and Credit Rating is not applicable. 

 
Compliance of Regulation 34(3) and Para F of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations 

As per Regulation 34(3) and Para F of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, the details in respect of equity 

shares lying in Unclaimed Suspense Account’ were/are Nil. 
 

DISCLOSURES 

(a) There are no transactions with related parties i.e. with Promoters, Directors, Management, Subsidiaries or 
Relatives that may have potential conflict of interest with the Company at large.  

(b) There has been no instance of non-compliance by the Company on any matter related to Capital Markets 
and hence the question of penalties or strictures being imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchange or 
SEBI or any Statutory Authority does not arise. 

(c) In Compliance with the Securities & Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015 as amended till date, on Prohibition of Insider Trading, the Company has a comprehensive Code of 
Conduct and the same is being strictly adhered to by its management, staff and relevant business associates. 
The code expressly lays down the guidelines and the procedure to be followed and disclosures to be made, 
while dealing with shares of the Company and cautioning them on the consequences of non-compliance 
thereof. Further, we affirm that no personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee. 

(d) Reconciliation of Share Capital: As stipulated by SEBI, a qualified Practicing Company Secretary carries 
out Secretarial Audit to reconcile the total admitted capital with National Securities Depository Limited 
(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital. This 
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audit is carried out every quarter and the report thereon is submitted to the Stock Exchanges where the 
company’s shares are Listed the audit confirms that the total Listed and Paid-up Capital is in agreement with 
the aggregate of the total number of shares in dematerialized form (held with NSDL and CDSL) and total 
number of shares in physical form. 

 

CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT & ETHICS  

The Company has adopted Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (“the Code”) which is applicable to the Board of 
Directors and Senior Management team (one level below the Board of Directors) of the Company. The Board of 
Directors and the members of Senior Management team are required to affirm semi-annual compliance of this 
Code. The Code requires Directors and Employees to act honestly, fairly, ethically and with integrity, conduct 
themselves in professional, courteous and respectful manner. The Code is displayed on the Company website. 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST  

Each Director informs the Company on an annual basis about the Board and the Committee positions he occupies 
in other companies including Chairmanships and notifies changes during the year. Members of Board while 
discharging their duties, avoid conflict of interest in the decision making process. The members of Board restrict 
themselves from any discussions and voting in transactions that they have concern or interest. 

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

Pursuant to Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations, the 
Company has formulated Whistle Blower Policy for vigil mechanism of Directors and employees to report to the 
management about the unethical behavior, fraud or violation of Company’s code of conduct. The mechanism 
provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and Directors who use such mechanism and 
makes provision for direct access to the chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. None of the 
personnel of the Company have been denied access to the Audit Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy is 
displayed on the Company’s website viz. www.bluecircleservices.in    

COMMUNICATION WITH THE MEMBERS/SHAREHOLDERS 

 The unaudited quarterly / half yearly / yearly results are announced within forty-five days of the close of 
the quarter. The audited annual results are announced within sixty days from the close of the financial year 
as per the requirements of the Listing Regulations.  

 The approved financial results are forthwith sent to the Stock Exchanges and are published in a national 
English newspaper and in local language (Marathi) newspaper, within forty-eight hours of approval thereof. 
Presently the same are not sent to the shareholders separately. 

 The Company’s financial results and official press releases are displayed on the Company’s Website- 
www.bluecircleservices.in. 

 Any presentation made to the institutional investors or/and analysts are also posted on the Company’s 
website. 

 Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of the Annual Report, which is sent to the shareholders 
of the Company. 

 The quarterly results, shareholding pattern, quarterly compliances and all other corporate communication to 
the Stock Exchanges viz. BSE Limited are filed electronically. The Company has complied with filing 
submissions through BSE’s BSE Listing Centre.  

 A separate dedicated section under ‘Investor Relation’ on the Company’s website gives information on 
unclaimed dividends (if any), notice of Board Meetings, quarterly compliance reports / communications 
with the Stock Exchanges and other relevant information of interest to the investors / public. 

DISCLOSURES ON MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS 

The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations. 
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DISCLOSURES ON DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS 

The Company has also complied with the discretionary requirements as under: 
 

A. The Board 

A Chairman’s office has been made available for the non–executive Chairman and he is allowed 

reimbursement of expenses incurred in performance of his duties. 

 
B. Shareholder Rights 

The Company communicates all material events to its shareholders as and when it occurs. 

 
C. Modified Opinion(s) in the Audit Report 

The Company confirms that its financial statements are with unmodified audit opinion. 

 
D. Reporting of Internal Auditor 

The internal auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee. 
 

DISCLOSURES ON NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS 

Adoption of non-mandatory requirements of Listing Regulations is being reviewed by the Board from time-to-
time. 

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 

Detailed information in this regard is provided in section “Shareholders Information” which forms part of this 
Annual Report. 

SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION 

a. Next Annual General Meeting 

The information regarding 38th Annual General Meeting for the financial year ended on 31st March 2021 is 
as follows :- 

Day & Date   : Monday, 27th September 2021 
Time   : 02:00 pm. 
Venue   : Unit No. 323 & 324, 3rd Floor, Building No. 9, Laxmi Plaza 

New Link Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai-400 053 

b. Financial Year  : 1st April to 31st March.  

c. Future Calendar for the next financial year :  

 

Subject Matter Tentative Dates 

Financial Reporting of 1st Quarter ended on 30th June 2021 Mid of August, 2021 

Financial Reporting of 2nd Quarter ended on 30th September 2021 Mid of November, 2021 

Financial Reporting of 3rd Quarter ended on 31st December 2021 Mid of February 2022 

Financial Reporting of 4th Quarter ended on 31st March 2022 During May 2022 

Date of Annual General Meeting During September 2022 

 
d. Date of Book Closure    : September 20 to September 27, 2021. (Both days inclusive) 

e. Dividend Payment Date   : No Dividend has been recommended for the year under review. 

f. Dividend History for Last 10 Years (In the FY where Dividend has been declared) : 
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Sr. 
No. 

Year of Declaration 
of Dividend 

Date of Declaration 
of Dividend 

Amount Declared 
per Share  

Face Value of 
Shares  

1. 2009-2010 May 31, 2010 ` 0.50 ` 10.00 

2. 2010-2011 August 11, 2011 ` 0.40 ` 10.00 

3. 2011-2012 August 11, 2012 ` 0.05 ` 1.00 

 
g. Unclaimed Dividend / Share Certificates 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, if the dividend transferred to the 
Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company remains unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from 
the date of such transfer then such unclaimed or unpaid dividend shall be transferred by the company along 
with interest accrued, if any to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (‘the IEPF’), a fund established 
under sub-section (1) of section 125. The details of unclaimed/unpaid dividend are available on the website 
of the Company viz. www.bluecircleservices.in  

In terms of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, (as amended from time to 
time) (IEPF Rules) shares on which dividend has not been paid or claimed by a shareholder for a period of 
seven consecutive years or more shall be credited to the Demat Account of Investor Education and 
Protection Fund Authority (IEPFA) within a period of thirty days of such shares becoming due to be so 
transferred. Upon transfer of such shares, all benefits (like bonus, etc.), if any, accruing on such shares shall 
also be credited to such Demat Account and the voting rights on such shares shall remain frozen till the 
rightful owner claims the shares. 

Shares which are transferred to the Demat Account of IEPFA can be claimed back by the shareholders from 
IEPFA by following the procedure prescribed under the IEPF Rules. 

 Details of Unclaimed Dividend and Due Dates for transfer are as follows as on March 31, 2021: 

Sr. 
No. 

Year of Declaration 
of Dividend 

Date of Declaration 
of Dividend 

Unclaimed 

Amount `  

Due Date for transfer 
to IEPF Account 

1. Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 
Further, as required to be disclosed under Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of Listing Regulations, Nil 
Shares are lying at the beginning or at the close of financial year in the Suspense Account. Further the 
Company did not moved in/out any Equity Share in said Suspense Account during the current financial year. 
 

h. Listing of Shares : BSE Limited (BSE) 

i. Listing Fees :     Company has yet to paid Annual listing Fees for FY 2018-19, 2019-20 & 
2020-21 to    BSE. 

j. Payment of Depository Fees: Annual custody/ issuer fee for the year 2018-19, 2019-20 & 2020-21shall be 
paid in due course by the Company to NSDL and CDSL. 

  

k. Website:  The Company’s website www.bluecircleservices.in contains a separate dedicated section called 
‘Investor Relations’. It contains comprehensive database of information of interest to our investors 
including the financial results, annual reports, dividends declared, if any, any price sensitive 
information disclosed to the regulatory authorities from time to time and the services rendered / 
facilities extended to our investors. 

 

l. Stock Code & ISIN : Scrip Code 508939 on BSE.  
  ISIN INE526K01031 on both NSDL & CDSL 

m. Market Price Data : 

             Market Price could not be obtained as trading of the company has been suspended from February 2020 till date 

http://www.bluecircleservices.in/
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n. Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. 

M/s. Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Ltd. has been appointed as Registrar & Share Transfer Agent for all work 
relating to share registry in terms of physical. All transfer, transmission, request related to 
correspondence/queries, intimation of change of address etc. should be addressed to our RTA directly at the 
following Address: 

 

M/s. Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Ltd. 

9, Shiv Shakti Ind. Estate, Ground Floor, J. R. Boricha Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai-400 011 
Tel : 022-2301 6761 / 2301 8261, Fax : 022-2301 2517, Email : support@purvashare.com 
Website : www.purvashare.com 

 
o. Share Transfer Systems 

The Share transfer is processed by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Ltd. 
and approved by Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, if the documents are complete in all respects, within 
15 days from the date of lodgment. 
 

p. Consolidation of Folios and avoidance of multiple mailing 

In order to enable the Company to reduce costs and duplicity of efforts for providing services to investors, 
members who have more than one folio in the same order of names are requested to consolidate their 
holdings under one folio. Members may write to the Registrars and Transfer Agents indicating the folio 
numbers to be consolidated along with the original shares certificates to be consolidated. 

  
q. Compliance with Secretarial Standards 

The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, a Statutory Body, has issued Secretarial Standards on various 
aspects of corporate law and practices. The Company has complied with each one of them. 

 
r. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March 2021 

No. of Equity 
Shares 

No. of Share 
Holders 

% of Share 
Holders 

Total No. of 
Shares Held 

% of Share 
Holding 

1-5000 388 58.88 284680 0.14 

5001-10000 22 3.234 175370 0.09 

10001-20000 27 4.10 389500 0.19 

20001-30000 14 2.12 366800 0.18 

30001-40000 12 1.82 425920 0.21 

40001-50000 9 1.37 408970 0.20 

50001-100000 36 5.46 2845530 1.40 

100001 and Above 151 22.91 198573230 97.59 

Total…. 659 100.00 20347000 100.00 

 
 

s. Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March 2021 
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Note: The Company did not receive distribution schedule and shareholding pattern as on 31st March 2021 so we 

are providing the data available with the company as on 31st March 2019 
 

t. Dematerialization of Equity Shares & Liquidity  

The Company has entered into agreements with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) whereby shareholders have an option to dematerialize their 
shares with either of the Depositories. 

 
 Procedures for dematerialization / rematerialization of Equity Shares:- 

Shareholders seeking demat / remat of their shares need to approach their Depository Participants (DP) with 
whom they maintain a demat account. The DP will generate an electronic request and will send the physical 
share certificates to Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Company. Upon receipt of the request and 
share certificates, the Registrar will verify the same. Upon verification, the Registrar will request 
NSDL/CDSL to confirm the demat request. The demat account of the respective share holder will be 
credited with equivalent number of shares. In case of rejection of the request, the same shall be 
communicated to the shareholder. 

In case of remat, upon receipt of the request from the shareholder, the DP generates a request and 
verification of the same is done by the Registrar. The Registrar then requests NSDL or CDSL to confirm the 
same. Approval of the Company is being sought and equivalent numbers of shares are issued in physical 
form to the shareholder. The share certificates are dispatched within 15 days from the date of issue of Shares. 

As on 31st March 2021, 98.99% Equity Shares of the Company are in dematerialized form. 
 

u. Nomination 

Individual Shareholders holding shares singly or jointly in physical form can nominate a person in whose 
name the shares shall be transferable in case of death of the registered shareholder(s). Nomination facility in 
respect of shares held in electronic form is also available with the depository participants as per the bye-laws 
and business rules applicable to NSDL and CDSL. Nomination form SH-13 ([Pursuant to section 72 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014] can be 
obtained from the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. It is also available on Public domain. 

 
v. Requirement of PAN Card in case of Transfer of Shares in Physical  

Pursuant to SEBI Circular, the shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested to submit self 
certified copy of PAN at the time of sending their request for share transfer/transmission of 
name/transposition of name. 

 
w. For the Attention of Shareholders holding shares in electronic form 

Shareholders holding shares in electronic mode should address all their correspondence to their respective 
Depository Participants (DPs). 

 

Categories No. of Shares % of Shareholding 

Promoters, Directors, Relatives & PAC 685600 3.37 

Indian Bank 0 0.00 

Foreign Financial Institutions 0 0.00 

Others (NRI) 7 0.00 

NBFCs Registered With RBI 4000 0.02 

LLP 7000 0.03 

Hindu Undivided Family (HUF) 3964 0.02 

Corporate Bodies 13826037 67.95 

Indian Public 5799922 28.51 

Clearing Members 20470 0.10 

Total ….. 20347000 100.00 
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x. Electronic Clearing Service 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has made it mandatory for all companies to use the bank 
account details furnished by the Depositories for depositing dividends. Dividend will be credited to the 
members’ bank account through NECS wherever complete core banking details are available with the 
Company. In case where the core banking details are not available, dividend warrants will be issued to the 
members with bank details printed thereon as available in the Company’s records. This ensures that the 
dividend warrants, even if lost or stolen, cannot be used for any purpose other than for depositing the money 
in the accounts specified on the dividend warrants and ensures safety for the investors. The Company 
complies with the SEBI requirement. 
 

y. Service of Documents through Electronic Mode 

As a part of Green Initiatives, the members who wish to receive the notice/documents through e-mail, may 
kindly intimate their e-mail address to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Purva Sharegistry 
(India) Pvt. Ltd. to their dedicated e-mail id i.e., support@purvashare.com 

 
z. Details on use of Public Funds Obtained in the last three years : 

No Fund has been raised by the Company by way of Public Issue or Right Issue or Preferential Issue during 
last three years. 

 
aa. Outstanding GDRs./ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion data likely impact 

on Equity : 

Not Any. 
 

bb. Investors’ Correspondence 

Compliance Officer RTA Correspondence Office 
Mr. Dhruva Narayan Jha 
Compliance Officer 
Tel : +91 33-2242 7270 

Email : blue.circl@gmail.com  

Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Ltd. 
No. 9, Shiv Shakti Ind. Estate, Gr. 
Floor, J. R. Boricha Marg, Lower 
Parel, Mumbai-400 011 
Tel : +91 22 2301 8261 / 0771 

Email: support@purvashare.com 

Unit No. 324, 3rd Floor, Bldg. No. 9  
Laxmi Plaza, New Link Road 
Andheri (W), Mumbai – 400 053 
Tel : +91 22 69969555 
Email : blue.circl@gmail.com    
Website : www.bluecircleservices.in  

 
cc. Code of Conduct 

The Board of Directors of the Company has laid down Code of Conduct for Directors and for Senior 
Management & Employees. All Board Members and Senior Management have affirmed compliance with the 
Code of Conduct for the year under review. Declaration to this effect signed by the Managing Director & 
Chief Executive Officer is annexed to this report. 

 
dd. Registered Office location 

Blue Circle Services Limited 
Unit No. 324, 3rd Floor, Bldg. No. 9  
Laxmi Plaza, New Link Road 
Andheri (W), Mumbai – 400 053  
Tel : +91 22 69969555; Email : blue.circl@gmail.com, URL : www.bluecircleservices.in 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

mailto:blue.circl@gmail.com
mailto:blue.circl@gmail.com
mailto:blue.circl@gmail.com
http://www.bluecircleservices.in/
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ANNUAL CERTIFICATE UNDER REGULATION 26 (3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS 
AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 

 
To, 
The Members, 
M/s Blue Circle Services Limited 

 
As provided under Regulation 26 (3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, all Board Members and Senior 
Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with M/s. Blue Circle Services Limited Code of Business 
Conduct and Ethics for the year ended March 31, 2021. 

 
For Blue Circle Services Limited 

 
Mumbai, August 11, 2021 

S/d- 
  DHRUVA NARAYAN JHA 

(DIN : 01286654) 
Chairman & Managing Director 
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Certificate of Non-Disqualification of Directors 

 
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Sub clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 
 

To, 
The Members of 
Blue Circle Services Limited  
Mumbai 
 
I  have  examined  the  relevant  registers,  records,  forms,  returns  and  disclosures  received  from  the  Directors  
of  Blue Circle Services Limited having CIN L74140MH1983PLC029378 and having Registered Office at Unit 
No. 323 & 324, 3rd Floor, Bldg. No. 9, Laxmi Plaza, New Link Road, Andheri (W), Mumbai – 400 053 
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this 
Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors 
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations 
furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the 
Company as stated below for the Financial  Year ending  on March 31, 2021  have  been debarred or disqualified  
from  being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other Statutory Authority. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my verification. This 
Certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
 
Place: Kolkata  
Date: August 11, 2021 
  

  S/d-  
SANJAY KUMAR VYAS 

                                                                                                                        Practicing Company Secretaries                                                                                                                                                          
ACS No. 55689, C.P. No. 21598 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director DIN Date of 
Appointment 

Date of Cessation 

1 Dhruva Narayan Jha* 01286654 09/05/2019 - 

2 Ramesh Dan 00113986 20/11/2020 - 

3 Supyar Kanwar 08484566 09/08/2021 - 

4 Sunita Rani Parida 08957699 20/11/2020 - 
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CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION 
 

We the undersigned, in my respective capacities as Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of M/s. Blue 
Circle Services Limited (“the Company”) to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that: 
 

 (a)  We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best of 
our knowledge and belief, we certify that: 
 

(i)  these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading; 

 

(ii)  these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.  

 

(b)  We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 
company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s code of conduct. 

 

(c)  We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and 
that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to 
financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the 
design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken 
or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

 

(d)  we have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee  
 

(i)   significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 
 

(ii)  significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and  

 

(iii)  instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if 
any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal 
control system over financial reporting. 

 
 

 

For Blue Circle Services Limited 
S/d- 
Ram Prakash Chowdhary 
Chief Financial Officer 
 

For Blue Circle Services Limited 
S/d- 

Dhruva Narayan Jha 
(DIN : 01286654) 

Chairman & Managing Director 

Mumbai, August 11, 2021 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
ANNUAL CERTIFICATE UNDER REGULATION 26(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS 

AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 
 

As provided under Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with M/s. 
Blue Circle Services Limited, Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for the year ended March 31, 2021. 

 
 

For Blue Circle Services Limited 
 

 
Dhruva Narayan Jha 

(DIN : 01286654) 
Mumbai, August 11, 2021                              Managing Director 
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 To, 
            The Members of  
            M/s BLUE CIRCLE SERVICES LIMITED 
 

1. This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter with the Company. 

2. We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by Blue Circle Services Limited (the 
‘Company’) for the year ended 31st March 2021, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 
46(2), and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the ‘Listing Regulations’). 

 
Management’s Responsibility 

3. The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. This responsibility 
includes the designing, implementing and maintaining operating effectiveness of internal control to ensure 
compliance with the conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibility 

4. Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations, our responsibility is to express a reasonable assurance in 
the form of an opinion as to whether the Company has complied with the conditions of corporate governance as 
stated in paragraph 2 above. Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, 
adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance with the conditions of corporate governance. It is neither an 
audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

5. We have examined the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the applicable Generally Accepted 
Auditing Standards in India, the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘ICAI’), and the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special 
Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics 
issued by the ICAI. 

6. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality 
Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and 
Related Services Engagements. 

Opinion 

7. Based on the procedures performed by us and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
provided to us, in our opinion, the Company has complied, in all material respects, with the conditions of corporate 
governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations during the year ended 31 March 2021. 

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Restriction on use 

8. This certificate is issued solely for the purpose of complying with the aforesaid regulations and may not be suitable 
for any other purpose. 

For Mahato Prabir & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Registration No. 325966E 

 

 
                                                                                                                                                         CA Prabir Mahato 

Place: Kolkata  

Date: June 21, 2021                                                                                  

Partner        

M. No. 060238 

Auditors’ Certificate on Corporate Governance 
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To  
the Members of 
 Blue Circle Services Limited 
 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
 

Opinion 
 

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Blue Circle Services Limited (the 
‘Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 
 
2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) 
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view inconformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under Section 133 of the Act, of 
the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and its profit (financial 
performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year 
ended on that date.. 

 
Basis for Opinion  

 
3.We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of 

the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 
Key Audit Matters  

 
4 Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters.  

 

S.NO KEY AUDIT MATTER 

 
1. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Accuracy of recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures of revenues and other 
related balances in view of adoption of Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” 
(new revenue accounting standard) 
The application of the new revenue accounting standard involves certain key judgments relating 
to identification of distinct performance obligations, determination of transaction price of the 
identified performance obligations, the appropriateness of the basis used to measure revenue 
recognized over a period. Additionally, new revenue accounting standard contains disclosures 
which involves collation of information in respect of disaggregated revenue and periods over 
which the remaining performance obligations will be satisfied Refer to Notes  to the Standalone 
Financial Statements 
 

Independent Auditors’ Report 
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2. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AUDITOR’S RESPONSE 
 
Our audit approach was a combination of test of internal controls and substantive procedures 
which included the following: 
Evaluated the design of internal controls relating to recording of efforts incurred and estimation 
of efforts required to complete the performance obligations. 
Tested the access and application controls pertaining to time recording, allocation and budgeting 
systems which prevents unauthorized changes to recording of efforts incurred. 
Selected a sample of contracts and through inspection of evidence of performance of these 
controls, tested the operating effectiveness of the internal controls relating to efforts incurred 
and estimated. 
Selected a sample of contracts and performed a retrospective review of efforts incurred with 
estimated efforts to identify significant variations and verify whether those variations have been 
considered in estimating the remaining efforts to complete the contract. 
Reviewed a sample of contracts with unbilled revenues to identify possible delays in achieving 
milestones, which require change in estimated efforts to complete the remaining performance 
obligations. 
Performed analytical procedures and test of details for reasonableness of incurred and estimated 
efforts. 
 
EVALUATION OF UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS 
The Company has material uncertain tax positions including matters under dispute which 
involves significant judgment to determine the possible outcome of these disputes. 
Refer Notes  to the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
AUDITOR’S RESPONSE 
Obtained details of completed tax assessments and demands for the year ended March 31, 2021 
from management. We involved our internal experts to challenge the management’s underlying 
assumptions in estimating the tax provision and the possible outcome of the disputes. Our 
internal experts also considered legal precedence and other rulings in evaluating management’s 
position on these uncertain tax positions. Additionally, we considered the effect of new 
information in respect of uncertain tax positions as at April 1, 2020 to evaluate whether any 
change was required to management’s position on these uncertainties. 
 
Accuracy of revenues and onerous obligations in respect of fixed-price contracts involves 
critical estimates 
Estimated effort is a critical estimate to determine revenues and liability for onerous obligations. 
This estimate has a high inherent uncertainty as it requires consideration of progress of the 
contract, efforts incurred till date and efforts required to complete the remaining contract 
performance obligations. 
Refer Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
AUDITOR’S RESPONSE 
 
Our audit approach was a combination of test of internal controls and substantive  procedures 
which included the following 

 Evaluated the design of internal controls relating to recording of efforts incurred and 

estimation of efforts required to complete the performance obligations.  

 Tested the access and application controls pertaining to time recording, allocation and 

budgeting systems which prevents unauthorised changes to recording of efforts incurred. 

 Selected a sample of contracts and through inspection of evidence of performance of these 

controls, tested the operating effectiveness of the internal controls relating to efforts incurred 

and estimated. 
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 Selected a sample of contracts and performed a retrospective review of efforts incurred with 

estimated efforts to identify significant variations and verify whether those variations have 

been considered in estimating the remaining efforts to complete the contract. 

 Reviewed a sample of contracts with unbilled revenues to identify possible delays in achieving 

milestones, which require change in estimated efforts to complete the remaining performance 

obligations. 

 Performed analytical procedures and test of details for reasonableness of incurred and 

estimated efforts. 

 

 
Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 
 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements 
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, (changes in equity)i and cash 
flows of the Company in accordance withii the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including 
the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Boards of Directors are also responsible for 
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements. 

 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by “the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”)”, issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Order”), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we consider 
appropriate and according to the information and explanation given to us, we give in the Annexure “A” a 
statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order. 

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:  

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as appears from our examination of those books.  
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c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.  

e) The going concern matter described in sub-paragraph (b) under the Other Matters paragraph above, 
in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.  

f) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2021, taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2021, from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.  

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
Annexure “B” and; 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, we report that 
:   

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations, if any, on its financial position 
in its financial statements; however there isn’t any litigations pending against the name of the 
company so far, as appeared from the records and has been told to us by the management. 

ii The Company has made provisions, as required under the applicable law or accounting 
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts; however, no such losses are been foreseeable in near future by the company’s 
management. 

iii There are no requirements in transferring amounts, to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company. 

 

For Mahato Prabir & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Registration No. 325966E 

 

 
                                                                                                                                   CA Prabir Mahato 

Place: Kolkata  

Date: June 21,2021                                                                                  

Partner        

M. No. 060238 
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ANNEXURE “A” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

Referred to in paragraph 9 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Blue Circle 
Services Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 – 
 
1) a)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 

situation of fixed assets; 

b)  These fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals; no material 

discrepancies were noticed on such verification, the same have been properly dealt with in the books of 

account; 

2) a)  The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the 
year. 

b)  The procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the management are reasonable and 
adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.  

c)  The company is maintaining proper records of inventory and no material discrepancies were noticed on 

physical verification. 

3)  The Company has not granted any loan to any, body corporate covered in the register maintained under 
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). Thus, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company. 

4)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 185 
and 186 of the Companies Act 2013, does not apply to the company, as the company is primarily engaged 
in the acquisition of securities and  engaged in the business of financing of companies. 

5) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 
76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified. 

6) The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the 
Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company. 

7)  a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed 
statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate 
authorities. 

b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no disputed amounts payable in respect of 
provident fund, income tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, service tax, cess and other 
material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2021 for a period of more than six months from 
the date they became payable. 

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the dues outstanding of income tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise or value added tax, which have not been deposited on 
account of any dispute, are as follows: 

Name of the 
Statue 

Nature of 
Dues 

Disputed 
Amount 

Financial Year for 
which it relates 

Forum where dispute is 
pending 

Income Tax Act, 
1961 

Income Tax 14,27,63,400 2011-12 Income Tax Appellate 
CIT 

Income Tax Act, 
1961 

Income Tax 35,57,240 2013-14 Income Tax Appellate 
C I T 

Income Tax Act, 
1961 

Income Tax 2,19,97,591 2014-15 Income Tax Appellate 
C.I.T 

Income Tax Act, 
1961 

Income Tax 3,04,50,363 2015-16 Income Tax Appellate 
CIT 

d)  The Company is not required to transfer any funds to the Investor Education and Protection Fund in 
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act. 
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8) The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution, banks, government or 

debenture holders during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable. 

9)  The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable. 

10) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the 
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit. 

11)  According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company has not paid/provided for any managerial remuneration during the year. 

12) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi 
company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

13) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, there is been no transactions with the related parties during the said period. Therefore, this 
paragraph is not applicable in case of the company. 

14) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully 
or partly convertible debentures during the year.  

15) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. 

16) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company is not required to 
be registered itself under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

 
 

For Mahato Prabir & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Registration No. 325966E 

 

 
                                                                                                                                   CA Prabir Mahato 

Place: Kolkata  

Date: June 21 ,2021                                                                                  

Partner        

M. No. 060238 
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ANNEXURE “B” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

Referred to in paragraph 10(g) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Blue Circle 
Services Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act 

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. Blue Circle Services Limited 
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements 
of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on 
Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the 
ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

6. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that – 

a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management 
and directors of the company; and 

c) provides reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. 

 

For Mahato Prabir & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Registration No. 325966E 

 

 
 

Place: Kolkata  

Date: June 21, 2021 

CA Prabir Mahato 
Partner        

M. No. 060238 
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NOTES AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Background 
 
Blue Circle Services Limited (referred to as “Company”) has been incorporated on February 22, 1983 vide 
CIN L74140MH1983PLC029378 having registered office at Unit No. 324, 3rd Floor, Building No. 9, 
Laxmi Plaza, New Link Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai-400 053. 
 
M/s. Blue Circle Services Limited is in the business of Trading Activities in Shares & Securities, and also 
engaged in treasury operations by way of providing funding solutions to clients i.e. Loans to its Clients. 
 
2. Statement of Compliance 

 
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as 
“Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘’the Act’’) read with Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the 
Act and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), as applicable. 
 
The financial statements are authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company at their 
meeting held on 30th May, 2021. 
 
3. Basis of Preparation 
 
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except for certain 
items that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting 
policies.  
 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is 
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset 
or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market 
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the 
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is 
determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 17 – Leases, 
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable 
value in Ind AS 2 – Inventories or value in use in Ind AS 36 – Impairment of Assets. 
 
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance 
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows: 
 

• Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that 
the Company can access at the measurement date; 

 
• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for 

the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and 
 
• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.  
 

4. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the 
revision affects only that period; they are recognised in the period of the revision and future periods if the 
revision affects both current and future periods. 
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All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per Company’s normal operating 
cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Companies Act 2013 and Ind AS 1- Presentation of 
Financial Statements based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for 
processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. 
 
5. Revenue Recognition 
 
Revenue from the sale of shares is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership have been 
transferred to the customers (which generally coincide with their delivery to customers), the amount of 
revenue can be measured reliably and recovery of the consideration is probable. It is measured at the fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable for goods supplied net of returns and discounts to 
customers. 
 
The calculation of the EIR includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that 
are incremental and directly attributable to the specific lending arrangement, transaction costs, and all other 
premiums or discounts. For financial assets at FVTPL transaction costs are recognized in profit or loss at 
initial recognition. 
 
The interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit impaired 
financial assets (i.e. at the amortised cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss 
allowance). For credit-impaired financial assets the interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the 
amortised cost of the credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. the gross carrying amount less the allowance for 
expected credit losses (ECLs)). For financial assets originated or purchased credit-impaired (POCI) the 
EIR reflects the ECLs in determining the future cash flows expected to be received from the financial 
asset. 
 
Revenue from services is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for 
services rendered in the periods in which the services are rendered on a prorated basis over the period or as 
per the terms of the contract. 
 
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive dividend has been 
established. 
 
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow 
to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time 
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that 
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition. 
 
Profit / loss on sale of securities are determined based on the FIFO cost of the securities sold. Profit / loss 
on FNO Segment and Commodity transactions is accounted for as explained below: 
Initial and additional margin paid over and above initial margin for entering into contracts for Equity Index 
/ Stock Futures / Commodity Spot Trading/ Currency Futures and or Equity Index / Stock Options / 
Currency Options, which are released on final settlement / squaring-up of underlying contracts, are 
disclosed under “Other current assets”. Mark-to-market margin-Equity Index / Stock Futures / Currency 
Futures representing the amounts paid in respect of mark to market margin is disclosed under “Other 
current assets”. 
 
Equity Index / Stock Option / Currency Option Premium Account" represents premium paid or received 
for buying or selling the Options, respectively.  
On final settlement or squaring up of contracts for Equity Index / Stock Futures / Currency Future, the 
realized profit or loss after adjusting the unrealized loss already accounted, if any, is recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. On settlement or squaring up of Equity Index / Stock Options / Currency 
Option, before expiry, the premium prevailing in "Equity Index / Stock Option / Currency Option 
Premium Account" on that date is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.  
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As at the Balance Sheet date, the Mark to Market / Unrealised Profit / (Loss) on all outstanding arbitrage 
portfolio comprising of Securities and Equity / Currency Derivatives positions is determined on scrip basis 
with net unrealized losses on scrip basis being recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the net 
unrealized gains on scrip basis are ignored. 
 
Other operational revenue represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is 
recognised when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract. 
 
6. Fixed Assets & Depreciation on Tangible Assets 
 
All assets held with the intention of being used for the purpose of providing services and not for sale in the 
normal course of business are recognized as Fixed Assets and are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation after considering lease adjustment account. All costs including finance cost attributable to 
fixed assets till assets are ready for intended use are capitalized. 
 
7. Depreciation and Amortisation of Tangible Assets  
 
Depreciation on tangible assets is calculated on a pro-rata basis. Depreciation is charged over the estimated 
useful life of the fixed assets on a Written Down Value Method prescribed under Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013 with the exception of the following:- 

Assets Estimated useful life as estimated 
by the company 

Estimated useful life under 
schedule II  of Companies Act, 
2013 

Computer 3-6 years 6 years 

Motor Car 8 years 8 years 

 
Assets costing Rs 5,000/- or less are fully depreciated in the year of purchase. 
 
8. Intangible Assets & Amortisation 
 
Intangibles assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. Intangible assets are amortized on a 
straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The Company uses a rebuttable presumption 
that the useful life of an intangible asset will not exceed ten years from the date when the asset is available 
for use. All intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible 
asset may be impaired. 
 
Residual Value for the intangible assets is considered as NIL 
 
9. Borrowing Costs 
 
Interest and other costs connected with the borrowing for the acquisition / construction of qualifying fixed 
assets are capitalised up to the date such asset are put to use and other borrowing cost are charged to 
statement of profit & loss. Borrowing cost includes exchange rate difference to the extent regarded as an 
adjustment to the borrowing cost. 
 
10. Use of Estimates: 
 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make 
estimates, judgments and assumptions. 
 
These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting 
estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances 
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in 
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which changes are made. Differences between actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in 
which the results are known/ materialized. 
 
11. Cash Flow Statement 
 
As required by IND-AS-7 “Cash Flow Statement” issued by “The Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India” the Cash Flow for the period is reported using indirect method. The Cash and Cash Equivalent of 
the Company comprises of Cash in hand and Current account with Scheduled Banks. Cash and cash 
equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank, Cheques and Cash in hand and short-term deposits 
with banks that are readily convertible into cash which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value 
and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments. 
 
12. Foreign Currency Transactions 
 
The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee. 
 
Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the respective 
transactions. Gains / losses arising on foreign currency transactions settled during the year are recognised 
in the standalone statement of profit and loss. 
 
Exchange differences arising on translation of monetary items are recognised in the standalone statement 
of profit and loss Exchange differences arising on monetary items that, in substance, form part of the 
Company’s net investment in a foreign operation (having a functional currency other than Indian Rupee) 
are accumulated in foreign currency translation reserve. 
 
Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency are carried at cost. There are no Foreign Currency 
transactions during the financial year. 
 
13. Derivatives 
 
The Company has not yet entered into derivative financial instruments, primarily foreign exchange forward 
contracts. 
 
14. Inventories 
 
Inventories are measured at lower of the cost and net realizable value. Cost of inventories comprises all 
costs of purchase (net of input credit) and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Costs of consumable and trading products are determined by using the First-In 
First-Out Method (FIFO). 
 
15. Employee Benefits 
 
Gratuity 
 
The liability for gratuity has not been provided as per the provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 
since no employee of the company is eligible for such benefits during the year. 
 
Provident Fund 
 
The provisions of the Employees Provident Fund are not applicable to the company since the numbers of 
employees employed during the year were less than the minimum prescribed for the benefits. 
 
Leave Salary 
 
In respect of Leave Salary, the same is accounted as and when the liability arises in accordance with the 
provision of law governing the establishment. 
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16. Taxation 
 
Tax expenses comprise current and deferred tax. 
 
Current tax 
Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to tax authorities in accordance with the 
Income Tax Act, 1961. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been 
enacted during the period, together with any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. 
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and 
intends either to settle on net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
 
Deferred tax 
 
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are 
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred 
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of 
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. 
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of 
the asset to be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in 
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
 
Income tax, in so far as it relates to items disclosed under other comprehensive income or equity, are 
disclosed separately under other comprehensive income or equity, as applicable. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are off set when there is legally enforceable right to offset current tax 
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances related to the same taxation authority. 
 
 
17. Depreciation 
 
Depreciation is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on written Down Value (WDV) at the rates 
and method prescribed in the Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013  and manner at written down value 
Method Rates and on pro rata basis for the additions during the year. 
 
18. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 
 
The Company recognises a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of an obligating event 
that probably requires outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be 
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that 
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. When a 
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is 
the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material). 
 
A disclosure of a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that 
may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a 
present obligation and the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure of 
contingent liability is made. 
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FINANCIAL YEAR DISPUTED AMOUNT FORUM WHERE DISPUTE IS 
PENDING 

2011-12 14,27,63,400.00 INCOME TAX APPEAL C.I.T  

2013-14 35,57,240.00 INCOME TAX APPEAL C.I.T  

2014-15 2,19,97,591.00 INCOME TAX APPEAL C.I.T  

2015-16 3,04,50,363.00 INCOME TAX APPEAL C.I.T  

 
19. Operating Segments 
 
The company is primarily engaged in the single business of trading in shares and securities and there is no 
reportable secondary segment i.e. geographical segment. Hence, the disclosure requirement of IND-
Accounting Standard-108 “Segment Reporting” as notified by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2006 (as amended) is not applicable 
 
20. Non Current Investments: 
 
Investment are valued at fair market value on the reporting date either through other comprehensive 
income, or through the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 
21. Borrowing Cost 
 
Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as a part 
of such assets. All other borrowing costs are charged off to revenue. 
 
22. Recognition 
 
Financial assets include investments, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, 
loans and other financial assets. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. 
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial 
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and ancillary 
costs related to borrowings) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial 
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of 
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 
23. Loan Origination Cost 
 
Brokerage, commission, incentive to employee etc paid (if any) at the time of acquisition of loans are 
charged to revenue 
 
24. Impairment of Non Financial Assets: 
 
The Management periodically assesses using external and internal sources whether there is any indication 
that an asset may be impaired. Impairment of an asset occurs where the carrying value exceeds the present 
value of the cash flow expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and its eventual disposal. A 
provision for impairment loss is made when the recoverable amount of the asset is lower than the carrying 
amount. 
 
25. Financial Instruments: 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when a Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments. 
 
26. De-Recognition 
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Financial assets are derecognised when the right to receive cash flows from the assets has expired, or has 
been transferred, and the Company has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. 
 
Consequently, if the asset is one that is measured at Amortised cost, the gain or loss is recognised in the 
standalone statement of profit and loss. 
 
Fair value through other comprehensive income, the cumulative fair value adjustments previously taken to 
reserves are reclassified to the standalone statement of profit and loss unless the asset represents an equity 
investment in which case the cumulative fair value adjustments previously taken to reserves is reclassified 
within equity. 
 
27. Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments 
 
Classification: 
 
Equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as equity in accordance with the substance of the 
contractual arrangements and the definitions of an equity instrument. 
 
Equity instruments 
 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after 
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a company are recognised at the proceeds 
received. 
 
28. Financial Liabilities 
 
Borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are initially recognised at the value of the 
respective contractual obligations. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any discount or 
premium on redemption / settlement is recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss as 
finance cost over the life of the liability using the effective interest method and adjusted to the liability 
figure disclosed in the balance sheet. 
 
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is, when the contractual 
obligation is discharged, cancelled and on expiry. 
 
29. Earnings Per Share 
 
The Earning per Share (Basic as well as Diluted) is calculated based on the net profit or loss for the period 
attributable to equity shareholders i.e. the net profit or loss for the period after deducting Proposed 
Preference Dividend and any attributable tax thereto. 
For the purpose of calculating (Basic and Diluted EPS), the number of equity shares taken are the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 
 

PARTICULARS 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 

Net profit/(loss) for the year as per Statement of 
Profit and Loss (Rs.)             

(19,93,397) (1,08,84,056) 

Weighted Average number of equity shares for 
calculating Basic EPS               

20,34,70,000 
 

20,34,70,000 
 

Weighted Average number of equity shares for 
calculating Diluted EPS               

20,34,70,000 
 

20,34,70,000 
 

Face value per Share (Rs) 10 10 

Basic & Diluted EPS on Face Value of Rs.10 (1.57) (1.57) 

        
30. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
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For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on 
hand, bank overdraft, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term highly liquid 
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts 
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
 
31. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies: 
 
The Company’s activities are exposed to a variety of Financial Risks from its Operations. The key financial 
risks include Market risk, Credit risk and Liquidity risk. 
 
(a) Market Risk:  
 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises mainly three types of risk:, Foreign currency risk, 
Interest rate risk and other price risk such as Equity price risk and Commodity Price risk. 
 
(b) Foreign Currency Risk: 
 
There are no Foreign Currency transactions during the financial year. 
 
(c) Foreign Currency Sensitivity: 
 
There are no Foreign Currency transactions during the financial year. 
 
(d) Interest Rate Risk and Sensitivity: 
 
The Company does not have any term borrowings. 
 
(e) Commodity price risk: 
 
The Company does not have any trading Activity during the Financial Year. 
 
(f) Equity price risk: 
The Company has not made any investment in equity Instruments. 
 
(g) Credit Risk: 
 
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty might not honor its obligations under a financial instrument or 
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The company is exposed to credit risk from its operating 
activities (primarily trade receivables). 
 
(h) Liquidity Risk: 
 
Liquidity risk is the risk, where the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated 
with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The company's 
approach is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. 
 
 
32. Trade Receivables: 
 
Customer credit risk is managed based on company’s established policy, procedures and controls. The 
company assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past 
experience and other factors. 
 
Credit risk is reduced by receiving pre-payments and export letter of credit to the extent possible. The 
Company has a well defined sales policy to minimize its risk of credit defaults. Outstanding customer 
receivables are regularly monitored and assessed. The Company follows the simplified approach for 
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recognition of impairment loss and the same, if any, is provided as per its respective customer's credit risk 
as on the reporting date.  
 
33. NOTE NO. 18 
 
A) Amount Paid/Payable to Auditors:      
 
 
a) Statutory Audit Fee                        -     - 
           
b) Tax Audit Fee                     20000               20000 
            
c) Other Certification Charges                      -        -  
 
d) Reimbursement of Expenses             -         - 

________      ________ 
                                                            20000                                                  20000________          

_______ 
 
B) Amount Paid/Payable to Cost Auditors Included in Misc. Expenses 
 
a) Audit Fees          Nil   Nil 
 
b) Reimbursement of Expenses       Nil   Nil 
 
                                                                                                                   ________      ________ 
                        
34. NOTE NO. 26 
 
Accounts in respect of Current and Non-Current Liabilities, Trade Receivables, Other Current Assets, 
Loans and Advances and Deposits are subject to confirmations of respective parties. 
 
35. NOTE NO. 27 
 
The management has certified that the Company has not received any intimation from suppliers regarding 
their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence, 
disclosures, if any, relating to total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises and the 
Principal amount and Interest due thereon remaining unpaid and the amount of Interest paid/ payable as 
required under amended Schedule III of the Companies Act.2013 could not be compiled and disclosed. 
The Auditors have relied on the certificate of the management in this regard. 
 
36. Capital Management: 
 
The Company’s policy is to maintain an adequate capital base so as to maintain creditor and market 
confidence and to sustain future development. Capital includes issued capital, share premium and all other 
equity reserves attributable to equity holders. 
 
The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net 
debt. Net Debt is calculated as borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. 

PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 
2021 

AS AT 31ST MARCH, 
2020 

 

Borrowings* - - 

Less: Cash and Cash equivalents 33,409 39,574 

Net debt 33,409 39,574 

Equity Share Capital 203470000 203470000 
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Other Equity (17,71,46,020) (17,51,52,622) 

Total Capital 2,63,23,980 2,83,17,378 

Capital and net debt 26,357,389 28,356,952 

Gearing ratio NIL NIL 

 
• Borrowings does not include Preference Share Capital. 

  

Disclosure of Related Party Transactions: 
 
Parties are considered to be related if at any time during the reporting period one party has the ability to 
control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and/or 
operating decisions. As required by AS-18 “Related Party Disclosure” only following related party 
relationships are covered 
 
Enterprises that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by, or 
are under common control with, the reporting enterprise (this includes holding Companies, subsidiaries 
and fellow subsidiaries); 
Associates and joint ventures of the reporting enterprise and the investing party or venture in respect of 
which the reporting enterprise is an associate or a joint venture; 
Individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the reporting enterprise that 
gives them control or significant influence over the enterprise, and relatives of any such individual; 
Key management personnel (KMP) and relatives of such personnel; and 
Enterprises over which any person described in (iii) or (iv) is able to exercise significant influence. 
 
• Disclosure of related party transactions: 
a. Wholly owned Subsidiary        :  Not Any 
b. Company under same Management               :   

 V.B. Industries Ltd 

 Jmd Ventures Limited 

 Universal Multimedia Limited 

 Warner Multimedia Limited 

 Jmd Sounds Ltd 

 Manmal Marketing Limited 

 Pushtikar Builders & Promoters Limited 

 Virdhi Buildwell Limited 

 Jagannath Vanijya Pvt Ltd 

 Prince Tradecom Limited 

 Vaishnodham Commercial Private Limited 

 Chefair Impex Ltd 

 Jatashiv Vyapaar Private Limited 

 Arstu Tradelinks Limited 

 Dinman Marketing Limited 

 Harsidhi Commercial Private Limited 

 Dhanlabh Dealcom Private Limited 

 Surakshit Management Private Limited 

 Apex Legal Advisory Private Limited 

 Jmd Broadcasting Private Limited 

 Crescent Digital Technologies Limited 

 Devendra Contra Private Limited 

 Vasundhara Commosale Private Limited 

 Upkar Tradelink Private Limited 

 Everlike Tradelink Private Limited 

 Natraj Vinimay Limited 
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 Shivmangal Tradelink Private Limited 

 Vinay Tie Up Services Private Limited 

 Zoom Tradelink Private Limited 

 Laxmidhan Tradelink Private Limited 

 Onward Commotrade Private Limited 

 Sarvapriya Marketing Private Limited 

 Shivbhumi Traders Private Limited 

 Surakshit Advisory Pvt Ltd 

 Nirnidhi Consultant Pvt Ltd 

 Matrix Systel Private Limited 

 Jain Stock & Share Brokers Limited 

 Xplosion Entertainment Private Limited  

 Prime Capital Market Limited 

 Ps It Infrastructure & Services Limited 

 Warner Multimedia Limited 

 Blue Circle Services Limited 
 

c. Transactions with related parties    
 
 

Name of Related Party   Nature of Transaction  Value(Rs) 

Jmd Venture Limited Purchase of Hardware & 
Software 

9,21,459 

  
d. List of Related Parties & their Relations & details of Key Managerial Person: 
 

NAME  NATURE OF RELATION NATURE OF TRANSACTION 
(SALARY) 

Mr. Dhruva Narayan Jha Managing Director - 

MR. Ram Prakash Chowdhary Chief Financial Officer 1,80,000 

 
 USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS: 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of 
operations during the reporting period end. Although these estimates are based upon management’s best 
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates. 
 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that 
period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future 
periods. 
 
In particular, information about the significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in 
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the 
financial statements are related to: 
 
Useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
Provision for product warranties 
Provision for employee benefits 
Fair value of financial assets / liabilities 
Provisions and contingent liabilities 
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37. Useful Life of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 
 
As described in the significant accounting policies, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of 
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each reporting period. The Company is 
required to determine whether its intangible assets have indefinite or finite life which is a subject matter of 
judgment. 
 
38. Provision for Employee Benefits 
 
The determination of Company’s liability towards defined benefit obligation and other long term employee 
benefits to employees is made through independent actuarial valuation including determination of amounts 
to be recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss and in other comprehensive income. Such 
valuation depends upon assumptions determined after taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion 
and other relevant factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment market. Information 
about such valuation is provided in notes to accounts.  
 
39. Fair Value Measurements and Valuation Processes 
 
Some of the Company’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In 
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it 
is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company engages third party qualified valuers to 
perform the valuation, if required. 
 
40. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 
 
The Company has ongoing litigations with various regulatory authorities and third parties. Where an 
outflow of funds is believed to be probable and a reliable estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be 
made based on management’s assessment of specific circumstances of each dispute and relevant external 
advice, management provides for its best estimate of the liability. Such accruals are by nature complex and 
can take number of years to resolve and can involve estimation uncertainty. 
 
41. De-recognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 
 
The Company has opted to apply the de-recognition requirements for financial assets and financial 
liabilities in accordance with Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the date of 
transition to Ind AS. 
 
42. Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets 
 
The Company has classified the financial assets in accordance with Ind AS 109 on the basis of facts and 
circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS. 
 
42.1 Fair Value Hierarchy 
 
Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.  
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).  
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 
inputs). 
 
43. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 
 
The Company has ongoing litigations with various regulatory authorities and third parties. Where an 
outflow of funds is believed to be probable and a reliable estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be 
made based on management’s assessment of specific circumstances of each dispute and relevant external 
advice, management provides for its best estimate of the liability. Such accruals are by nature complex and 
can take number of years to resolve and can involve estimation uncertainty. 
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44. De-recognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 
 
The Company has opted to apply the de-recognition requirements for financial assets and financial 
liabilities in accordance with Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the date of 
transition to Ind AS. 
 
45. Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets 
 
The Company has classified the financial assets in accordance with Ind AS 109 on the basis of facts and 
circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS. 
 
46. Cash and bank balances 
 
Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked balances with 
banks and other bank balances which have restrictions on repatriation. Short term and liquid investments 
being subject to more than insignificant risk of change in value, are not included as part of cash and cash 
equivalents. 
 
47. Securities premium account 
 
Securities premium includes: 
 
The difference between the face value of the equity shares and the consideration received in respect of 
shares issued pursuant to Stock Option Scheme. 
 
The fair value of the stock options which are treated as expense, if any, in respect of shares allotted 
pursuant to Stock Options Scheme. 
 
The issue expenses of securities which qualify as equity instruments are written off against securities 
premium account. 
 
48. Statement of Cash Flows 
Statement of cash flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and financing 
activities. Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method adjusting the net profit for 
the effects of: 
i. changes during the period in operating receivables and payables transactions of a non-cash nature; 
ii. non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealised gains and losses; and 
iii. all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items 
which are not available for general use as on the date of Balance Sheet. 
 
49. Key source of estimation 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that the management of the 
Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of 
the period, the reported balances of assets and liabilities and the disclosures relating to contingent liabilities 
as of the date of the financial statements. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates include useful lives of property, plant and equipment & 
intangible assets, expected credit loss on loan books, future obligations in respect of retirement benefit 
plans, fair value measurement etc. Difference, if any, between the actual results and estimates is recognised 
in the period in which the results are known. 
 
50. Changes in Accounting Standard and recent accounting pronouncements (New Accounting 
Standards issued but not effective):  
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On March 30, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) (Amendments) Rules, 2021, notifying Ind AS 116 on Leases. Ind AS 116 would replace the 
existing leases standard Ind AS 17. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosures for both parties to a contract, i.e. the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 
introduces a single lease accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all 
leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Currently for 
operating lease, rentals are charged to the statement of profit and loss. The Company is currently 
evaluating the implication of Ind AS 116 on the financial statements.  
The Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2021 notified amendments to the 
following accounting standards. The amendments would be effective from April 1, 2021 
a) Ind AS 12, Income taxes — Appendix C on uncertainty over income tax treatments 
b) Ind AS 19— Employee benefits 
c) Ind AS 23 – Borrowing costs 
d) Ind AS 28— investment in associates and joint ventures 
e) Ind AS 103 and Ind AS 111 — Business combinations and joint arrangements 
f) Ind AS 109 — Financial instruments 
 
51.  Purchases  
 
           Purchase is recognized on passing of ownership in share based on broker’s purchase note.  
 
52. Expenditure 
 
Expenses are accounted for on accrual basis and provision is made for all known losses and liabilities. 
 
53. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies General 
 
53.1.1 Contingent Liabilities & Commitments-NIL 
53.1.2 Additional Information disclosed as per Part II of the Companies Act, 2013 –NIL 
 
54. Segment Reporting 
 
 The company is primarily engaged in the single business of trading in shares and securities and there is no 
reportable secondary segment i.e. geographical segment. Hence, the disclosure requirement of Accounting 
Standard-17 “Segment Reporting” as notified by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as 
amended) is not applicable. 
 
For Mahato Prabir & Associates Chartered 
Accountants 
FRN- 325966E 
 
 
CA Prabir Mahato 
Partner 
Membership No: 060238 
 
Place: Kolkata  
Date: June 21, 2021 
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Blue Circle Services Limited 

 
 
 
Dhruva Narayan Jha 
(DIN : 01286654) 
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